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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM?”)
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)

BERBEXZAERAT ([BRMDAIER(RIER ) 25E

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on
the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole
or any part of the contents of this report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(1) the information contained in this annual report is accurate
and complete in all material respects and not misleading;

(2) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this annual report misleading; and

(3) all opinions expressed in this annual report have been arrived
at after due and careful consideration and are founded on
the bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CORPORATE PROFILE AR

Founded in July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as the leading
beauty and slimming services providers in Hong Kong and
Mainland China over the past nine years through the introduction
of a series of innovative health and beauty treatment and products
as well as the provision of the most professional and attentive
slimming and trimming solution to its customers. The Group was
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 8200) in November 2003 and is
the first listed slimming and beauty company in Hong Kong.

The Group has nine slimming and beauty centres with three in
Hong Kong and six in Mainland China including two in Beijing,
two in Shanghai, one in Shenzhen and one in Hangzhou. All these
centers provide unique all-rounded personalized slimming and
beauty services, which include the VIP Slimming Programmes,
“Anti-
Aging” and the latest “Anaplastic Cosmetology” programmes.

“Nursing Slimming Service”, “Pilate Self-Active Bodyline”,
Combining the effective treatments and comprehensive follow up,
all programmes enable customers to achieve their desired skin
quality, weight and body shape in the healthiest manner.

The Group has been widely recognized and highly praised for
its outstanding products and services and received numerous
accolades during the years of which included “Top Service Award”
of Next Magazine, “PRC Tourists — My Best HK Brand” by
China Enterprise Reputation & Credibility Association and “Hong
Kong Top Ten Brand Names Award” by Chinese Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong, etc..

To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a
distribution business in Mainland China in September 2005
who distributes P&G’s personal care products in Shanghai and
cosmetic and skin care products with famous brands like SK-II
and Olay in the eastern and western part of Mainland China. With
years of development, the distribution network is well developed
and with the additions of other famous brands such as Philips
Lighting products, Gillette Men series, Dunhill fragrance, Gucci
fragrance, etc., the growth of turnover as well as the number of

distribution points is impressive.
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CORPORATE PROFILE ‘A #]

In 2006 & 2007, the Group has successfully opened two beauty
and slimming centres in Vancouver, Canada and in Shenzhen,
PRC. This marked a crucial start for the Group’s new type of
business, namely, the management consultation service. The
characteristic of this business is that a fee will be received for the
using of our brand name and logo and subsequently a monthly
management fee will also be received based on the turnover
or profit of such beauty centre. Unlike the previous beauty and
slimming centres which required heavy investment initially, this
business model secured the Group’s income in the first day of the
project.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY f F B &=

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EENE —ZEENF ZETLE —ETRE —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$ iOOQ HK$ "OOQ HK$ \OOQ HK$ ’\OOQ
FET FAET FET FET FET
(Note)
=)
Turnover EE 2] 437,916 446,821 443,588 358,650 141,709
Cost of sales HERAK (359,450) (344,809) (348,164) (276,363) (18,081)
Gross profit EF 78,466 102,012 95,424 82,287 123,628
Other revenue and net Healas &
income WA B 1,237 4,727 7,408 7,784 16,403
Selling and distribution THE R SRR
costs (63,081) (63,491) (65,370) (92,359) (67,048)
General and administrative ~ — & R{TE =
expenses (45,186) (39,115) (45,505) (52,467) (38,427)
Other operating expenses ~ EA& LR % - - (7) (3,770) -
(Loss)/profit from g (ER) /B
operations (28,564) 4,133 (8,050 (58,525) 34,556
Finance costs BE A (1,579) (941) (666) (144) @)
Share of losses of jointly FE(GHEEH B S
controlled entities &1 (8,277) - - - -
(Loss)/profit before BRELAT(BB),/
taxation BR (33,420) 3,192 (8,716) (58,669) 34,554
Income tax expenses FTEfiAX (1,039) (1,353) (7,231) (2,759) (3,484)
(Loss)/profit for the year R (f51#8), /B (34,459) 1,839 (15,947) (61,428) 31,070
Non-current assets ERBEE 29,364 22,987 20,228 23,562 21,941
Current assets RBEE 117,669 144,496 88,265 73,425 90,897
Current liabilities nBaE 88,484 77,443 82,553 61,300 21,479
Net current assets REEEFE 29,185 67,053 5,712 12,125 69,418
Non-current liabilities FRBEAE (3,563) (3,041) (232) — -
Net assets EEFE 54,986 86,999 25,708 35,687 91,359
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Equity attributable to PIN/NG
equity shareholders of %—Hﬁ/\ﬁ{ﬁ
the Company P 31,108 58,141 9,072 30,356 91,401
Minority interests b %(Hx?ﬁ&” 23,878 28,858 16,636 5,331 (42)
Total equity BB 54,986 86,999 25,708 35,687 91,359
Note: As a result of the correction of prior period error in respect of equity- Hit: BAR-_ZEZENFELIEBEEIMFZBRMHR
settled share-based payment transactions in 2008, the fair value of the SZAMBER RERLERBEZ2ATFE
share options granted amounting to HK$1,558,000 had been recognised 1,558,000 B tERNBE_ETERF=A=+—
in the income statement for the year ended 31 March 2005 with a AEFEZRERER iﬂﬁﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ*iﬁi
corresponding increase in Share-based payment reserve in accordance AE BN 58 2 SR [ AR 0 1= 30 J PR AR 19 1< 0 6 15 4 7]11 *ﬁ
with HKFRS 2, Share-based payment. There is no net effect to the net e HR_TTHF - gg/\¢
assets and/or total equity as of 1 April 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 and SHFRZFTENFHNA—H &_2§/\¢
31 March 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009. —EELF T N\FR_ZTZTNLF=A
T+ AR EEFHEAESARTEERTY
@,
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE#RE

| am pleased to present the annual results to the shareholders of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 (the “Year Under
Review”).

In the Year Under Review, the Group and the world people went
through an unusually tumultuous moment in life. It was fraught
with dramatic changes and is set to go down in history as an
extraordinary year. At the beginning of the year, the snowstorms
winter in Mainland China, most of leisure activities were blocked
by the low temperature, rain, snow and frost. In May, a massive
earthquake occurred in Sichuan, China, but it shocked the whole
world. In September, the US sub-prime mortgage crisis pulled
down many Wall Street giants and formally set off the financial
tsunami. The financial tsunami spread rapidly over the world,
leading to a system collapse of global stock markets, bubble
economies and worldwide investors’ confidence. Until now, the
worst time of this is not yet passed, the falling of 100-years’
enterprises, the upcoming high unemployment rate and the wide
spread of human swine flu continue to frighten the people’s hearts
and hurt deeply the fragile economies.

However, even though in such a difficult business environment,
the Group still can manage to maintain the turnover value.
As compared to the corresponding period in last year of
approximately HK$446,821,000, the turnover in the Year Under
Review only slightly decreased by 2% to HK$437,916,000
approximately.

In Hong Kong, our slimming services is highly reputed in the
slimming and beauty industry. Therefore, in the past years,
we introduced many beauty services which are recognized as
high quality and among them, some are exclusively and firstly
introduced by us, creating awareness in the industry. We targeted
to tailor made all kinds of beauty services especially for Asian
ladies, combining traditional Chinese medicine science high-
tech western technology, with our professional knowledge and
techniques, we can sure to deliver the best services to our
customers. During the Year Under Review, we launched a wide
variety of new services, among them, the “M.Nano Cavitation
slimming treatment”, “Placenta Cell renewal facial treatment”
and “HA+ Hyaluronic Moisture treatment” are the most popular
one. Moreover, we will continuously update with new treatments
available to provide our clients with more variety of beauty and
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE#HRE

slimming choices. And again this year, being awarded by Yahoo!
for the “Yahoo! Emotive Award”, further proof the confidence of
the public to the Group. Due to the raising demand, recently, we
have also provide “Child care service” to our customers. This
service allowing our customers to enjoy their treatments while
knowing that their children are taken care of in good hands by our
professional nurse.

For the PRC market, two new beauty, slimming and spa centres
have been opened in Beijing in the Year Under Review. During
the time when PRC authority and Beijing are preparing for the
2008 Olympic Games, we surely believe that Beijing will become
another spotlight of PRC and even of the World. Therefore, we
visualised our ideas and opened two new beauty, slimming
and spa centres, one is located at the central business area of
Beijing city and the other one is located at the well-known low
density luxury property district, in July 2008. Although the two
new centres are still in their infant stage, the pace of growth is
well-satisfied. In Shanghai with intense competitions, contributed
by the successful marketing strategies and our professional
services, we have been locally recognized as a “Star” brandname
in Shanghai. While in Shenzhen and Hangzhou, our centres have
already entered the local markets, gained customer’s loyalty and
established local presence.

During the Year Under Review, the Group’s turnover reached
approximately HK$437,916,000, comparable to HK$446,821,000
during the corresponding period last year. Turnover generated
from the beauty, slimming and spa centers in Hong Kong and in
Mainland China amounted to HK$70,290,000, a decrease of 30%
compared to corresponding period in 2008 (HK$99,935,000).
For the product distribution business in Mainland China, the
turnover amounted to approximately HK$364,985,000, compared
to approximately HK$344,563,000 in the corresponding period in
last year.

During the Year Under Review, our Group has incurred a
loss attributable to equity shareholders of approximately
HK$30,651,000 (2008: approximately HK$55,000). The extreme
business environment and the set-up cost for the development of
slimming business in Mainland China contribute most to the loss.
However, thanks to the efforts contributed from all our staff and
the strict cost control implemented, the magnitude of loss is being
controlled and which reflected our ability to adapt to adverse
situation.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE#RE

In addition to overcome various problems as mentioned above,
the Group has actively considered potential new income stream.
In late 2008, we launched an innovative “Online Click and
Buy” online booking system to fulfill and cater for the changing
customer’s demands. With our online booking system, customers
can easily select the time, location and treatment all on their own
needs and even to pay via our online payment system. Breakaway
traditional beauty salon payment method by one-off payment
instead of prepaid in advances. More than 100 different types
of treatment, including beauty, slimming, medical cosmetology,
massage and spa treatments available. Customers are welcome
and eagerness to such system. At the beginning of year 2009, our
monthly active customers increase more than 35% and its rise
continuously, making a marvelous results. In Hong Kong, we are
the first beauty and slimming services provider to provide one-
stop online booking platform to customers.

During the Year Under Review, we have entered into management
consultation services contracts with several investors. We provide
relevant training and tutorials to the staff of those investors to
ensure adequate and professional quality to the customers there.
In return, we receive a one-off service fee for the usage of logo
and training provided. With the success, the Group believed and
expected that such management consultation services to be one
of the major revenue drivers of the Group for the foreseeable
future.

The impressive track record of the slimming and beauty business
in Shanghai, Shenzhen and Hangzhou has also strengthen the
Group’s confidence in opening new centres in the PRC and
distribution business in Guangdong province. Therefore, besides
maintaining the growth of the existing beauty, slimming and spa
centres, the Group is putting much effort to explore possibilities
to capture the untapped market and to make the Group’s brand
to be a generally recognized brand in the PRC. In July 2008,
as mentioned above, the Group has opened two new beauty,
slimming and spa centres in Beijing to further expand our
boundary.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE#HRE

Over the years, the “Sau San Tong” brandname is firmly
established in both Hong Kong and the PRC with services
and treatments that leads the beauty and slimming industry.
During the Year Under Review, the Group was awarded "Most
Favorable Enterprise with Good Credibility 2008” & “Consumers’
Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands” in “PRC Consumers’
Most Favorable Brands Campaign 2008” by China Enterprise
Reputation & Credibility Association, “The Most Influential Brand
of Slimming and Beauty Industry in China 2009” by The Board
of Ten Influential China Brands, Championship of “My Favourite
Brand 2008 - The Most Reliable Slimming Service Provider”
by Express Post of Sing Tao, etc. Besides, the Group was also
awarded with Caring Company Logo by The Hong Kong Council
of Social Service in the Year Under Review to honour the Group’s
contribution to the society. All these awards and recognitions
helped the Group in strengthening its corporate image in Hong
Kong as well as in Mainland China.

The Group excelled by the ability to stay ahead of the market.
Over the years, the Group has introduced many innovative beauty
and slimming products to Hong Kong. These beauty and slimming
products enables the Group to gain additional market share as
well as strengthened its brandname. For the years to come, the
Group will continue its effort in the product distribution market,
especially in the Mainland China. At present, the Group already
has the distribution network for distributing mainly P&G personal
care products in Shanghai and P&G’s cosmetic and skin care
products, including SK-Il and Olay in the eastern and western
part of the PRC. Besides, in the Year Under Review, we also
distributed Gillette Men series, Philips Lighting products and
many world famous prestige fragrance brands, such as Dunhill,
BOSS, Gucci, ESCADA, etc., to diversify our product types and
uplifting our competitive edge. In near future, the Group can utilize
its already established distribution network in Mainland China to
distribute our other beauty and health products. The management
is confident that this segment of the Group’s business will become
a revenue driver in the coming years.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE#RE

Besides, for the beauty and slimming services, the Group will
continue to focus its effort in the Mainland China market which
proves to have enormous potential. The Group will continue
to provide the most professional and attentive services to its
customers and enhancing brand awareness. The management
believes the valuable experience accumulated over the years
allows our dedicated and committed management team to ride
through the challenges, continues to expand our business and
maintains the Group as one of the leading slimming services and
products provider.

On behalf of the board of Directors, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers, staff and
business partners for their support and trust to the Group. With
our persistent effort, | have confident that the Group will achieve
steady growth in the future and provide satisfactory return for all
shareholders.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 June 2009
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Business Review

For the year ended 31 March 2009 (“the Year Under Review”),
turnover amounted to approximately HK$437,916,000,
representing a slight decrease of 2% from approximately
HK$446,821,000 in last year. Such decrease was mainly due to
the drop of sales of our slimming centres in both Hong Kong and
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) under such extreme
business environment. However, due to the contribution from
distribution sales by Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd.
(“Dong Fang”) has a satisfactory growth, the adverse impacts
to the Group’s turnover has been significantly compensated.
During the Year Under Review, turnover from such distribution
business amounted to approximately HK$364,985,000 (2008:
approximately HK$344,563,000), while the turnover generated
from all the beauty, slimming and spa centres in Hong Kong and
in the PRC amounted to approximately HK$70,290,000 (2008:
approximately HK$99,935,000).

During the Year Under Review, the Group recorded a decrease
of approximately HK$23,546,000 in gross profit. The Group has
incurred a loss attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$30,651,000 (2008: approximately HK$55,000).
As mentioned before, the global economic meltdown which
induced by the US financial crisis is the main reason of the
backsliding performance. In order to weather the storm, the Group
strengthened its existing policy of exercising tight control over all
its costs, and reducing these wherever possible. During the Year
Under Review, the administrative expenses (including impairment
and write off of receivables) totalling amount to HK$45,186,000.
Apart from these expenses, the administrative expenses has
been reduced from approximately HK$39,106,000 of 2008 to
approximately HK$39,050,000.

Being the leading beauty and slimming service provider, Sau San
Tong is able to withstand the short term set back by refreshing
change and diversification of business and continue to be the
leader of the industry providing the most quality and professional
services to its customers.
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Outlook

We expect the existing slowdown in the global economy will
continue until late of 2009. This will offer challenges but also
unique opportunities for our businesses. The Group is financially
strong and we have no investments in derivatives, bonds or
structured financial products. Facing with extreme business
environment, we are now actively developing new ideas and
exploring new business opportunities, and we are highly confident
to ride through it. Since we are well positioned to take advantage
of this situation, the economic climate offers potential new
opportunities which could enhance our growth and profitability in
medium to long term.

Beauty, Slimming and Spa Centres

For Hong Kong, the Group providing not only slimming services
but also a variety of non-slimming services. In addition to a
range of comprehensive beauty and health services and the
successfully launch of “Lipolaser Slimming treatment” and “Gold

|u

Facial” in the past, the Group foresee the mainstream trend of
cosmetological technology as the way in beauty and skincare,
we will continuously seek for and draw the newest and most
innovative way of cosmetology treatment. This year, the Group has
launched a most innovative technological cosmetic treatment, the
Cell Regeneration Program. It uses the PhytoCellTec™ technology
to abstract the precious Phyto Stem cells from a rare species
of plants from high altitude, revise your skin age for a youthful
visage. Moreover, we have also launched the “M.Nano Cavitation
slimming treatment”, “Placenta Cell renewal facial treatment”
and “HA+ Hyaluronic Moisture treatment”, and which are highly
appreciated by our customers. The Group is optimistic on this
new type of service which in turn will strengthen the profitability of

the Group.

For PRC, due to economic boom in the PRC and the more
awareness of health, the citizens there are more affordable and
more willing to pay for beauty and health of her own. This benefit
our beauty, slimming and spa centres, as shown by our strong
performance of our PRC beauty, slimming and spa centres. As the
Group expects the prosperity in the PRC will continue, the Group
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is actively seeking opportunities to open new beauty, slimming
and spa centres in major cities in the PRC and the distribution of
beauty products in order to capture the untapped market.

During the Year Under Review, the Group has entered into a joint
venture agreement to form a jointly controlled entity to set up one
of the beauty, slimming and spa centres in Beijing.

In late 2008, the Group introduced the innovative idea of “One-
stop” Online Booking to all our customers around the World.
Customers can book over 100 different types of treatments via
our Company’s website. They can select the date, time, location
and treatment all on their own needs and even to pay via our
online payment system. The newly launched service can fulfill
the customer’s reluctance to exhausting hard-selling strategy
and prepayment practice, and we firmly believe this will bring the
beauty and slimming industry to new era.

Management Consultation Services

Being the leading beauty and slimming services provider,
our Group has accumulated a wealth of experience in the
management and operation of beauty, slimming and spa centres
as well as high caliber professionals from the industry. In order
to capitalize its existing resources, the Group has embarked the
provision of management consultation services for the setting up
beauty, slimming and spa centres.

During the Year Under Review, our Group partnered New World
Group and Sinolink Group to develop clubhouses and spa beauty
centres for luxury estates in PRC. Benefit from their years of
experience in real estate market and our reputation in beauty
and slimming industry, it will become a new stream of income in
future.

The Group is confident that there will be an immense demand for
this kind of services in the PRC since the beauty and slimming
market there is still under developed with a shortage of expertise.
Also, provision of this kind of services command not much
overhead costs and thus contributing to a positive revenue growth
to the Group.
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Health and Beauty Products

During the past years, the Group’s ability to introduce innovative
and quality products has earned a leading status in the Hong
Kong market. Besides Hong Kong, the Group is planning the
distribution of health and beauty products to the major cities in
the PRC, with satisfactory progress. The management believes
by leveraging on “Sau San Tong” brand name and the customer
confidence built up over the prior years, these health and beauty
products will be well received in the market bringing forth an
additional revenue stream for the Group.

Distribution Business in the PRC

Apart from provision of slimming and beauty services, another
major line of business is product distribution. We distribute
mainly P&G personal care, cosmetic and skin care products,
such as SK-II, Olay, etc. and also Gillette Men series and Philips
Lighting products. With the Group’s great effort, the sales of SK-
Il and Olay are very encouraging during the Year Under Review.
Besides, during the Year Under Review, we also distribute certain
world famous brands of prestige fragrances, such as, Dunhill,
BOSS, Gucci, ESCADA, etc. We believe that with the increasing
variety of products, it will bring sizeable revenue for the Group
in near future. Looking forward, as the PRC market continues
to boom showing immense potential for high-end products,
the management anticipates the revenues generated from the
distribution business will experience further growth and will in turn
provide the Group with stable source of income.

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial
Resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31 March 2009 were approximately
HK$29,988,000 compared to approximately HK$50,493,000
as at 31 March 2008. The Group’s gearing ratio of 45% (2008:
26%) was based on the total of bank borrowings and obligations
under finance leases of approximately HK$24,478,000 and the net
assets of the Group of approximately HK$54,986,000.

As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s liability was approximately
HK$92,047,000, compared to approximately HK$80,484,000
as at 31 March 2008. It includes account payables and other
payables approximately HK$23,711,000 (2008: approximately
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HK$36,703,000), mainly for the daily operations of our
subsidiary — Dong Fang, deferred income approximately
HK$15,040,000 (2008: approximately HK$18,110,000) and bank
borrowings approximately HK$22,546,000 (2008: approximately
HK$22,131,000), bank borrowings is also for Dong Fang
trading activities. Such liability is intended to be financed by
internal resources of the Group. The liquidity ratio of the Group
represented by a ratio of current assets over current liabilities
was 1.33:1 (2008: 1.87:1), reflecting the adequacy of financial
resources.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its
treasury policies. The Group evaluates the financial condition
of its customers regularly so as to reduce the credit risk. The
average outstanding days of the Group’s accounts receivable
was maintained at below 90 days. To manage liquidity risk, the
Group closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
commitments and to ensure that the Group can meet its funding
requirements.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and payments
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi,
the Groups considers that there was no significant exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuations.

Net Assets

As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s net assets amounted to
approximately HK$54,986,000 compared to approximately
HK$86,999,000 as at 31 March 2008. There are no charges on
the Group’s assets as at 31 March 2009.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2009, the Company has issued a corporate
guarantee amounting to RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$17,033,000) (2008: RMB15,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$16,618,000)) to a bank in respect of banking
facilities granted to, a subsidiary as 51% owned by the Group.
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In March 2009, a customer instigated a legal proceedings
against a subsidiary, as 51% owned by the Group, for a non-
performance of a sale contract by that subsidiary and claimed for
the recovery of full payment of the goods plus interest payment
and the associated legal costs incurred by the customer totalling
RMB1,090,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,238,000).

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had 431 employees (2008:
around 413 employees). During the year, the Group’s total
staff costs amounted to approximately HK$44,844,000 (2008:
approximately HK$45,049,000).
scheme adopted by the Company, share options have been

Pursuant to the share option

granted to eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the
Company under the terms and conditions stipulated therein.

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of
the performance and experience of individual employee and are
in line with local market practices where the Group operates. In
addition to salary, the Group also offers to its employees other
fringe benefits including provident fund and medical benefits. The
Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified participants
may be granted options to acquire shares of the Company. There
is an aggregate of 24,690,000 outstanding options to subscribe
for 24,690,000 shares of the Company pursuant to the share
option scheme as at 31 March 2009.

Significant Investments and Acquisitions

There were no significant acquisitions and disposals of
investments by the Group during the Year Under Review.

Future Plan

Going forward, in addition to the continual improvement of the
operation performance of the existing beauty, slimming and spa
centres. Besides, the Group will invest more resources on beauty
product distribution business in order to enrich and diversify our
business, bringing profits to our shareholders.
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Directors

Executive Directors

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley, aged 34, is the Chairman and
Founder of the Group. She established the Group nine years ago
and successfully developed it to a group with over 400 staff. Dr.
Cheung is responsible for the overall stewardship of the Group
which includes directions and formulating strategies. Leading the
Group to a new height, she achieved various accomplishments
complimenting her management style and innovative promotional
strategies. Dr. Cheung received the Honour Award of the
Innovative Entrepreneur of the Year 2004 of the Hong Kong
district, organised by the City Junior Chamber in May 2004. In
November of the same year, Dr. Cheung was awarded as one
of the “100 Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs in China” by the
“Women Entrepreneurs’ Association of China”. She is also one of
the few Hong Kong awardees and one of the youngest awarded
entrepreneurs. In 2006, Dr. Cheung was awarded as one of the
World Outstanding Chinese. In 2009, she is awarded as one of the
Top Ten Most Influential entrepreneur for China Brand Building by
The Board of Ten Influential China Brands. Furthermore, she was
invited to be one of the deputy chairmen of the “China Foreign
Trade Council” and the honourary president of the “Federation of
Beauty Industry (Hong Kong)”.

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Heng, Frankie, aged 36, is an Executive
Director. He is responsible for the business development and
administration of the Group. Mr. Cheung holds a master degree
in business administration from Americus University of the
United States. Prior to joining the Group in June 2002, he was
the director of Vicorp Credit Services Limited, a company which
provides credit information, commencing from September 1999.
Mr. Cheung is the elder brother of Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin, aged 59, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is
responsible for giving advices to the board of Directors and
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Hong is a practicing solicitor
and a notary public in Hong Kong. He has been practicing as a
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solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong for over 33 years and is
the senior partner of Messrs Lau, Chan & Ko, Solicitors. He holds
a bachelor degree in science from University of New South Wales.
Mr. Hong is an independent non-executive director of Simsen
International Corporation Limited, Victory Group Limited and
Fulbond Holdings Limited, companies listed on the Main Board of
the Exchange, as well as the commissioner of Hong Kong Road
Safety Patrol.

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing, aged 50, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is the Vice
Chairman of the Federation of Motion Film Producers of Hong
Kong Limited since 1998 and appointed Member of the Election
Committee for the Performing Arts sub-sector of the Legislative
Council Election. Mr. Li is the founder and chairman of Mei Ah
Entertainment Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Exchange.

Ms. HUI Yat Lam, aged 35, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in March 2008. Ms. Hui is an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Ms. Hui has over 10 years of experience
in professional auditing, accounting and financial management.
Ms. Hui was previously the qualified accountant and company
secretary of Long Success International (Holdings) Limited, a
company listed on GEM of the Exchange.

Senior Management

Mr. TSE Ching Leung, aged 36, is the Financial Controller,
Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr.
Tse is responsible for overseeing the accounting and financial
management and company secretarial functions of the Group.
He is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Tse joined the Group in February 2008
and has accumulated over ten years of accounting and auditing
experience.
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Introduction

The Company puts strong emphasis on the superiority, steadiness
and rationality of corporate governance. Subject to the deviations
as disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with all
the provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code”) as set out in the GEM Listing Rules by establishing
a formal and transparent procedures to protect and maximize the
interests of shareholders during the year.

Directors’ Securities Transaction

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM listing rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, they all confirmed having complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors adopted by the Group.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) currently comprises five
directors, including two executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors. The Board is mainly accountable to the
shareholders. It is also in charge of the management, business
strategy, annual and interim results, risk management, major
acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions and other
major operational and financial aspects of the Group. Major
corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board
to the management include the preparation of annual and
interim accounts for board approval before publishing, execution
of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and rules and regulations.

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the members of
the Board are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management
Profile” of this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each executive
director has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to
carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.
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The Board fulfilled the minimum requirement of appointing at
least three independent non-executive directors throughout the
year. It also met the requirement of having one independent non-
executive director with appropriate professional qualification
or professional accounting or financial management expertise
throughout the year.

Each of the independent non-executive directors have entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term expiring on 31
July 2008, with the term being renewed for a further term of one
year commencing from 1 August 2008.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each independent non-executive directors and therefore still
considers them to be independent.

Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie, an executive director, is the elder
brother of Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, the chairman. Save
as disclosed above, there is no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship) among
members of the Board.

During the year, the Board held four meetings. The details of the
attendance rate of each director are as follows:

EFeMAFEE2FANGEBRZERI =4
BIUFATEFCRERT  TRAFEEF
MAEA—BBUFNTEZSHRAEAEXER
FEXSHAIMHEEEXER AT -

EBUNRATEERARTDTEREAL -
BE-PE \FLA=T-BER MEHT
BEEET 4 m-TENENA B
5o

ARABCEESEBIUFNTEST 2FERER
£ ARDRARRFH /B

HTEERREERLERTIEREMEL M
e BEXMBEEEIN EFERKNEMLE
HEER(BENSE 25 KRIEMEKR
ERARAER)

RAFE EFERR
HERFBEAT

TRREH - REFZ

Attendance at

Board meeting Attendance rate

Name of directors EEHNSE EEedERH HE=
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley R EHRE L 4/4 100%
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie REELAE 4/4 100%
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin REMEE 3/4 75%
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing 2 5 A 4/4 100%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam FF—EZ L 4/4 100%
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Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley assumes the role of both the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. While
serving as the chairman of the Group, Dr. Cheung leads the Board
and is responsible for the proceedings and workings of the Board.
The role of chairman and chief executive officer of the Group
rests on the same individual which deviates from the Code of not
having a clear division of responsibilities.

The Board is of the view that it is in the best interests of the
Group to have Dr. Cheung, who is the founder of the Group with
vast and solid experience in the beauty sector, to perform the
dual role so that the Board can have the benefit of a chairman
who is knowledgeable about the business of the Group and is
most capable to guide discussions and brief the Board in a timely
manner on pertinent issues. With Dr. Cheung being the chief
executive officer, the Group can also benefit from having strong
connection and network in the beauty market.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance
with Rules 5.28 and 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are: to independent review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
systems, to ensure good communications among Directors and
the Company’s auditors, to recommend the appointment of
external auditors on an annual basis and approval of the audit
fees, to assist the Board in oversight of the independence,
qualifications, performance and compensation of the independent
accountant, to review quarterly, interim and annual results
announcements as well as the financial statements prior to
their approval by the Board, to provide advice on audit report,
accounting policies and comments to all Directors.
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The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors including Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Ms. Hui Yat Lam. During
the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings to assess the
effectiveness of internal control system, to review all draft annual,
quarterly and interim financial reports, and to know about external
auditors’ statutory audit plan. The attendance records of the audit
committee meetings are set out below:

EREREE U KEBRE 2B IUIRNTESR
ERNEE(BERZEGLIR) FEELELERG
—RAZT RAFE BRZEEEHRTOARX
G ASHEARREIERIE 2 BIE - ERIT
BEE FERTHUBHREZER ALK
RN BEN R ERBGTE c BREBEY
& HF RN

Attendance at
Audit Committee

Name of Audit ERZEER meeting Attendance rate
Committee members REHER ERZEBHERE HER
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin REREAE 3/4 75%
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing TR A 4/4 100%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam FF—E&Z L 4/4 100%

Auditors’ Remuneration

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing
any non-audit functions performed by the external auditor,
including whether such non-audit functions could lead to any
potential material adverse effect on the Company. During the year,
auditors’ remuneration for audit services (inclusive of taxation
services) is HK$780,000. Save as disclosed above, no services
such as due diligence and other advisory services were provided
during the year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Group was established in
accordance with the Code. The main role and function included
the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all
Executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment. The Remuneration
Committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.
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Members of the Remuneration Committee include three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Hong Po Kui,

Martin and Ms. Hui Yat Lam.

The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting to consider
and approve (i) the remuneration of the Directors, (ii) salary
adjustment of the management of the Group; and (iii) range of
salary adjustment of employees of the Group. The attendance

record of the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out below:

FTNEEe cKERE-RBUIIRTESS
BESE(FNEESER) BB AR
—EZE e
TMEE S RIT—RgE  UERRIE()
BEEZEHM

(WNEEERBECHFSAZ &
(I EBEEZHCHAREE - TNEELS
EZHFLEEYDT

Attendance at
Remuneration

Name of Remuneration FMEES Committee meeting Attendance rate
Committee members REHA FMESSHERE HER
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing FEEE A 1/1 100%
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin BERHLA 1/1 100%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam R 11 100%
Nomination of Directors REES

The Board is empowered under the Company’s Articles of BEEQRARNAABERMAUREZETTMEA

Association to appoint any person as a director either to fill a
casual vacancy on or, subject to authorization by the shareholders
of the Company in general meeting, as an additional member of
the Board. Qualified candidates will be proposed to the Board for
consideration and the selection criteria are mainly based on the
assessment of their professional qualifications and experience.
The Board selects and recommends candidates for directorship
having regard to the balance of skills and experience appropriate
to the Group’s business.

ITRES NEMER HEARFABER
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Responsibility of Preparation of the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility of preparing the
financial statements of the Company. As at 31 March 2009, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties or events
which may have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to
operate as an on-going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have
prepared the financial statements of the Company on an on-going
concern basis. The responsibility of the auditors with respect to
financial reporting are set out in the Report of the Auditors in this
annual report.

Internal Control Systems

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal
control periodically to ensure an effective and adequate
internal control system exists. The Company convened
meeting periodically to discuss financial, operational and risk
management control. The Directors consider that the Company
has implemented a series of procedures for safeguarding the
Company’s assets against unauthorised use or misappropriation,
maintaining accounting records properly and ensuring the
reliability of financial information.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2009.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Cayman lIslands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands and
its shares have been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market (the
“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and particulars of the subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial
statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products and sale of other health and
beauty products. The slimming centres, which are operated under
the “Sau San Tong” brand name, provide services such as whole
and partial body slimming, weight management, body treatment
services and facial treatment services to its customers.

Financial Statements

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009, and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date, are
set out in the financial statements on pages 41 to 142.

Transfer of Reserves

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of HK$30,651,000 (2008:
loss of HK$55,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserve are set out in note 28 to the financial
statement on page 117.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2009 (2008: Nil).
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Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 4. The summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 13 to the financial statements on page
88.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 28(c) to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and reserved) of the Cayman Islands, share premium
and contributed surplus of the Company are distributable to the
shareholders. As at 31 March 2009, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segment is set out in note 12 to the financial
statements on pages 85 to 87.

Share Option Information

A summary of the share option scheme and details of the

movements in share options of the Company during the year are
set out in note 27 to the financial statements on pages 112 to 116.
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Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing
Ms. Hui Yat Lam

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie and Mr. Hong Po Kui,
Martin will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Ms. Hui
Yat Lam as at the date of this annual report and therefore still
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are
set out on pages 21 to 22.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley and Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
each has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing 4 November 2003 and will
continue thereafter for successive term of one year unless and
until terminate by not less than six months’ notice in writing served
by either party to the other provided that such notice period shall
not expire at any time during the first 12 calendar months of the
term of the appointment.

Each of these Executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary
and a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount
of the bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any
financial year of the Company may not exceed 10% of the audited
consolidated net profit of the Group (after taxation and minority
interest but before extraordinary and exceptional items of the
Group) in respect of the financial year.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have been appointed
for a term expiring on 31 July 2008 with the term being renewed
for a further term of one year commencing from 1 August 2008.
Save for a total fee of approximately HK$100,000 for all of
them for the year ended 31 March 2009, the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are not entitled to any other remuneration.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisting during or at
the end of the financial year to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2009, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates in shares and underlying shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) which are required to be notified to the Company and
the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
including interests and/or short positions which they are deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which will
be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company:

Number of shares

EERFETHRAERRD ZES
159729}

R_ZEZNF=ZA=+—H ARAEBEERE
ZITBABSRESEECBMBEATHN ARG SE
AR (ERRESFRBAEGRI(TBS RS
1B 1) XV EB) 2 AR 0 R ABRARR 7 ([ B 15 1) R
BEERIOAE  MAREES KBS KRS
XVEREE 7 K 58 8 73 B AR FE A& AN A 7] e Bk A2 P
(BIEREES MHAERD 2 BREH - H#R
BREERB 2 EERSKE) - HIBRIEES
REIEEPIE 352K AEE - SARKBAIZER
FERAIE 5,46 2 5.67 RS AR A LB FT
HWE -

RARBRMD 2 HR

Approximate

R EE Percentage of
Interest in the
Company’s
issued
share capital
Corporate Personal oy NN
Name of Directors Interests Interests Total ERITRA
EEHNE AREER BARERE By ERZHNEIHL
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 149,200,000 100,070,000 249,270,000 25.97%
R EHHE L (Note 1)
(Hiat 1)
Note 1: BT -

The 149,200,000 shares were held by Biochem Investments Limited
(“Biochem”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability. The entire issued share capital of Biochem is wholly owned by Dr.
Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.

it 149,200,000 A% A% 17 FA Biochem Investments Limited
([Biochem)## * Biochem A— HR KBEZHES T
Az 2 BR AR ° Biochem 2 22 E TR AHREKE
MmEL2&EHES -
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company:
Share Option Scheme
The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from

share options granted to the Directors of the Company under the
Company’s share option scheme, details of which are as follows:

RARFEBRG 2178
B E

AR FABRG 2 2R 8 A A RIR BB
HERTAAREEZBAE - HFENT

Approximate

percentage
Aggregate interest in
Long position  the Company’s
in underlying issued
Shares of the share capital
Subscription Company fEART
Price per share RAAF EELES
Name of Director Date of grant Exercisable period SRR HBR G+ BEz2HBN
BEEps RFEH e RBE HRZEY BA
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 10 September 2004 10 September 2004 — HK$0.512 5,000,000 0.52%
REMEL “ZEMFAATH 3 November 2013 051237
“EEMENATHE
“Z-=%+—-A=H
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie 10 September 2004 10 September 2004 — HK$0.512 5,000,000 0.52%
REELE ZZTMEAATA 3 November 2013 0.512%7T
“ZEMEAATHEE
—Z—=5+—A=H
Note 1: BT

The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director in a physically
settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates has any personal, family, corporate or other interests
or short positions in the Shares of the Company or its associated
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, are
required to be notified to the Company and the Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short FTERRARDZEZRAE
Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2009, so far was known to any Directors or chief RZZEZNF=ZA=1T—H BARFREME
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would ERTFETHAERA - TYRERIEBEEAL
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,  HIEEMEXVEEE2 M EI N LA THE » =X
or who were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested in 5% BRABEEXHAERBARRAREBITRALSY
or more of the issued capital of the Company, or which were A E o NBERSRBIEES R ERNE
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept under SBEREFEZ R BT EMIANERAEEH
Section 336 of the SFO or have notified to the Company were as wm

follows:
Long position in Shares: R 2158 -
Number of shareholding
BREE
Number
of share
options held
Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage Fr¥s
FERE 514 gl ERa BREHE
Biochem Beneficial owner 149,200,000 15.54% —
EmEEA
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley Beneficial owner 100,070,000 10.43% 5,000,000
REME L EREAA
GEM Hero Investments Limited Beneficial owner 144,000,000 15.00% —
EnlAA

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, no person, other B EXFIRBEEIN RZEBEEAF=A=1—
than the Directors of the Company and the chief executive of the H BAQRREEMAEBTEITHAS (EH#
Group whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and HEN EX[EERFETHRABRRKRGD 2 #EE
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Position in Shares” above, Kok B | —8R )b » BEEE R A T RAR AR

has registered an interest or short position in the share capital, K- HHEROMMESTELEGRERIAR -
underlying shares and debentures of the Company that was MBRIEES R HEEME 336 & T LAGEEE ©

required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Annual Report 2009 4= it ¥

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 % ¥ A Rt A 5]




DIRECTORS’ REPORT &%= &34

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) has any interest in a business which compete or might
compete with the business of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float in accordance
with the GEM listing rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT #&= =34

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 99.51% (2008: 93.37%) of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 97.11% (2008: 88.52%). Sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 27.23% (2008: 24.87%) of the
total sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$368,000.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Audit Committee

The Group has established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Details of the role and work performed by the
committee are set out in “Corporate Governance Report” in this
annual report.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

FEEFRHKER

FR AEEEERARERIZRBEEFE
HAIRBERE 2 99.51% (— T T )\F : 93.37%) °
mMEEFRRAHER ZREZEIN%(ZE
TNF :88.52%) c NEBZAARF ZHE
HEFEBRHEEEZ2723% (ZET N\ F -
24.87%) °

ARBESHEEMABEATRERNBRR(GLE
EA RERAB ZBRABEAARD BT
RZ5%)RAEE AR ERE T HEREEMR

B -

o

EERE

ez

AEERF AR L 2 A FBHEL 368,0008

<]

3

BRBEER

ARB 2 EBERRAANTEFTRATMNERBESL
BERZGX MHEREEENERZFE
MR EEM RS -

BEREES

AEBEBRAIZR MR RIS 5.28 £ 5.33 1k
ZHREKRLEZEZES  WAEmMAT L HBE
fiE - ZBezACNMETZ TEFFHEN
REFRIEERERREIA -

FRESETESXE2TATA

RAREREFETESFR RN —EKH A
BN AIEIR ETHRAIE 5482567 K2R Z W
TRERKBRE ZTATH - (ERESHITE
(RS 21THRTH - ERMBESELERE
HE - ARARREMBEEHEETHNEIE
R ETRAIEE 5.48 F5.67 IEFTilt 2 X 5 W ST

S o
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Auditors

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited was first appointed as auditors of
the Company in 2008 upon the resignation of CCIF CPA Limited.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditors of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT B M ZHEN RS

-5~

BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG LIMITED

il RAEG TP A R

12¢th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

FWTHHEP168-200 M P OWMERHKEL M

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
EEEZERERAR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 41
to 142, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2009, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

BEEEEZERERAT
(RAESFLSEMK L2 BRI A])
ERERRZBILBARE

Az B (A T RS IR I )) E B IIEN S 41
EF1RAEHGERRARATDATEHREIE
"‘TJ)ZZ?E.\EM%*&% ' &tiﬁé\ﬁﬁki&i\%@%

R-ZEZNFZA=+—"HZEARRREE
ﬁﬁ%@/{&%ziEZEIU:@;Z%?E\H&ﬁ%% * R
ERAEPRNIGEEHERER  ULRTES
R Z BB R H A fY FEARRE o

ESHUBBRRAAREZER

BERFEFARERBEEEQTMASEMZ
BEMBREEARBB(RAGD ) HER
ERBEILEEMA 2N ZFIHRE - It
BAEER&  BUAEFARRIEAENA
i 2 5 B B ¥R ARRE 2 M EBERE - IAfE B S
WAL N HEAR AR ERMEMNE A
REL - BEAYEAEE SR - RIRER
TEHERZ gFHEET -

BBz EE

BPIMETERBERMANEZHZEMBHREK
EEER - AMEEREBBRRBME - BRI
Sh - PR RE TR AEEMA R - AR
MAREAR - HEMEMA LA T SAEL
REE-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT B M ZEETHRE

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2009 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 June 2009

Chan Kwan Ho, Edmond
Practising certificate number P02092
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 & %

F=ZA=+—HIFE

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS) (A&7t 251

=1 A\
e

ki &

2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Vitia FET FEr
Turnover —E 4] 3 437,916 446,821
Cost of sales SHEMA (359,450) (344,809)
Gross profit EF 78,466 102,012
Other revenue H b Uz 4 1,418 3,747
Other net (loss)/income Hth (E8), WA FEE 4 (181) 971
Selling and distribution costs SHE R HHR AR (63,081) (63,491)
General and administrative expenses ~ —f# &7 (45,186) (39,106)
(Loss)/profit from operations g (BR) &7 (28,564) 4,133
Finance costs BRA A AR 5(a) (1,579) (941)
Share of losses of jointly controlled JE(L R H ZEEESE
entities (3,277) —
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREBLAT(B51E) BRI 5 (33,420) 3,192
Income tax expense FrSfiA = 6 (1,039) (1,353)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE)BR (34,459) 1,839
Attributable to: BER
Equity shareholders of the Company KRBEZFEA 9 (30,651) (55)
Minority interests LER R R (3,808) 1,894
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EHE)BR (34,459) 1,839
Dividend iz 8. 10 — —
Loss per share BREE 11
Basic, HK cents AR B (3.19) (0.01)
Diluted, HK cents BE B (3.19) (0.01)

The notes on pages 48 to 142 form part of these financial FASEF 142 B Z TS IS MK 2 — 5P
statements. (i

Annual Report 2009 4 F )t
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 s = A FR A




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET %8 & E

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Amounts due from related parties

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Bank loans, secured

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges
Amount due to a director

Amount due to a related party
Deferred income

Obligations under finance leases
Current taxation

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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*RBEE
Mg TR
e
PRI 8 7 e 2

RBEE

FE

FEUE 550 IR
BNFR - e kA
& Wk I8

FEW B IE AL 50R
RBekReEFEED

RBAE
RITER - BEM

e E Z50R

Hip e FA N BT & A
e —REEHIA

e —RBAEAN LA
B A
MEREARE

= MR

RBEEFHR

BEEAERADRE

2009 2008

—ZEEAF —EEN\F

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaF FET FET
13 26,529 22,737
14 250 250
16 2,585 —
29,364 22,987

17 5,641 6,689
18 34,325 35,642
18 26,213 28,472
19 21,502 23,200
20 29,988 50,493
117,669 144,496

21 22,546 22,131
22 14,508 15,004
22 9,203 21,699
23 24,836 —
19 887 —
15,040 18,110

24 1,141 302
25(a) 323 197
88,484 77,443

29,185 67,053

58,549 90,040



BERER

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET #R&

AT 31 MARCH 2009 NE=ZA=+—H
(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS) (LA 251)

2009 2008
—EZhE —ET)N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
e FET FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Obligations under finance leases RbE S AE 24 791 —
Deferred tax liabilities FEIEFRIBAE 25(b) 2,772 3,041
3,563 3,041
NET ASSETS EEFH 54,986 86,999
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRRE 28
Share capital A7 9,599 9,599
Reserves 11 21,509 48,542
Total equity attributable to equity RARERTE ARG
shareholders of the Company METR 4B R 31,108 58,141
Minority interests D BT R 23,878 28,858
TOTAL EQUITY ERAEm 54,986 86,999

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25

June 2009.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley

g -

Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

5K Xt REE
Director Director
EE EE

BN _ZEENFAA-tTHBHERIKRE

FASEF 142 B 2L ET BRER 22—

statements. 3 o

The notes on pages 48 to 142 form part of these financial

Annual Report 2009 4 F )t
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 & kA R A H




BALANCE SHEET EE& &%

AT 31 MARCH 2009 # hE=R=+—H

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS) (LA T 2751)

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Other payables and accrued charges
Amount due to a director

Net current assets

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital

Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE
RHBARZIRE

RBEE

Y= VNCIE/ S
BNFIE - B REmRER
IR

RekREeFED

REBAE

JEAS P8 2 RIFRIA

Hip e FR N ERT & A
BN —REFFIA

RBEEFH

BERHE
BXRERE

REEAH

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25

June 2009.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley

5K X it
Director

EZE

The notes on pages 48 to 142 form part of these financial

statements.
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2009 2008
—ZEEAF —EENF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FET FHETT
15 4 4
4 4
15 82,798 57,147
18 908 2,906
20 1,203 51
84,909 60,104
15 3,852 4,164
22 923 810
23 25,174 —
29,949 4,974
54,960 55,130
54,964 55,134

28
9,599 9,599
45,365 45,535
54,964 55,134

EFER _TTENFAAA-THAREREE

Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

REE
Director

B=

FABEE 142 AZ MM FI KoK 2 — &

,(/\ °



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #&4&%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 &% NE=ZR=+—BILFE

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS) (A )

2009 2008
—EEhEF —TEN\F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
e FET FET
(restated)
(&%)
Total equity at 1 April (restated) ROUB—RAZEREEE(EY) 86,999 25,708
Net income recognised directly in HEENRERERZWAFE
equity:
Exchange differences on translation HMEHN B A R 2 B 7%
of the financial statements of WMERFEEZIERZRE
overseas subsidiaries 28(a) 2,446 3,777
Net (loss)/profit for the year FR(ER) BFIFHE 28(a) (34,459) 1,839
Total recognised income and FREERABARBEZ A
expense for the year (32,013) 5,616
Attributable to: BB
Equity shareholders of the Company AN AEZEA A (27,033) 640
Minority interests DEBR = (4,980) 4,976
(32,013) 5,616
Movements in equity arising from BAXGEEZEZEE !
capital transactions:
Issue of shares, net of expenses BT MBS — 48,514
Capital injection from minority DERERIFAEB KN
shareholders = 7,246
Realisation of capital reserve BARREEBER - (100)
Realisation of merger reserve REFEHE—HWEBEAR
upon disposal of a subsidiary BEGHREBEIR
in prior year = 15
— 55,675
Total equity at 31 March MR=ZB=1+—BHzEZHEE 28(a) 54,986 86,999

The notes on pages 48 to 142 form part of these financial FABEE 142 B 2T E M WK 2 — &
statements. (i
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 &
(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS) (JA;

Operating activities

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

—Interest income

—Depreciation

—Impairment losses on trade and
other receivables

—Write-off of other receivables

—Reversal of impairment loss on trade
receivables

—Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

—Finance costs

—Share of losses of jointly controlled
entities

—Foreign exchange loss, net

Operating (loss)/profit before
changes in working capital

Decrease in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade
receivables
Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due
from related parties
Decrease in trade payables
Decrease in other payables and
accrued charges
Decrease in deferred income
Increase in amount due to
a related party

Cash used in operations
Tax paid
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid

Interest received

Net cash used in operating activities
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NF=ZA=+—RHILFE

TLE5)

RERES

B Al (E18), /& A

AT REE

— FBHA

—E

— FEUWE 5 50R & H b FE UK
HRERER

— Hib U E 5 I M

— BWE ZFIRRERERED

— HEWE  HER
REZEERFER

— BERA

— BIEARIZHIERER

— EXEE - FER

EEESEBAZ
e (ER), B

D
R 5 5OBA D/ (C)

BNFOR - e kA
& W R IR A

FEU B E A LR
B (4800)

eI & 53R

Hip e s K ERT & A

D
WA D

eI — R BEEA L FIRE I

RAREERB RS
EMHRA

EPEERMSH
EUH B

RAREEEB2REFH

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 1& & % ¥ A B A W]

= A\
ma

Note
HteF

4
5(c)

5(c)
5(c)

4

4
5(a)

16

RERER

2009 2008
—ZEEAF —EEN\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(33,420) 3,192
(141) (276)
10,578 7,801
4,134 362
2,002 —
(185) (172)
124 181
1,579 941
3,277 —
3,322 1,484
(8,730) 13,513
1,048 9,175
950 (11,154)
(3,325) (11,609)
1,698 (12,873)
(496) (1,308)
(12,496) (1,128)
(3,070) (5,305)
887 —
(23,534) (20,689)
(1,210) (1,949)
141 276
(24,603) (22,362)




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT #&8HERER

NEFE=A=+—HBILEFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 & %
(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS) (A

Investing activities

Advancements to jointly controlled
entities

Payment for the purchase of property,

plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Issue of shares, net of expense

Repayment of bank loans

Proceeds from new bank loans

Repayment of loan from a director

Advancement from a director

Inception of finance leases

Capital element of finance lease
rentals paid

Interest element of finance lease
rentals paid

Capital injection from minority
shareholders

Other borrowing costs paid

Dividends paid to minority interest

Net cash generated from
financing activities

(Decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 April

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 March

REFED
A Sk R ) B R BN 2 SRR

BEWE  HEkEE
Z R

HEME - MR RERE
ZFTS50R

RARBREEDH 2 REFH
BMEED

BITAAD - FORRFIE
BEBITER
MBRITER 2 ISR
BE—REFER
H—REERNZ A
A mEES
BIMEEEHS 2

BAEB
ENRERERSZ

A S BB
DRI

EABR
ENEMEERA
ENTFOBBRRERD ZBE

REBMEEH
REFE

iﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
W), K

REOB-BZRERAE
ZEY

Exgnove

R=ZA=+—-HAZRER
REEED

The notes on pages 48 to 142 form part of these financial

statements.

2009 2008

—EEAF —EENF

Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Kt FAT FHETT
(5,884) —
(14,828) (10,790)

594 762
(20,118) (10,028)

28(a) = 48,514
(112,525) (75,970)

112,940 87,991
= (5,585)

24,836 —

2,300 —
(670) (764)
(30) (48)

— 7,246
(1,549) (893)

(2,108) —

23,194 60,491

(21,527) 28,101

50,493 20,533

1,022 1,859

20 29,988 50,493

FASEF 142 B WAL ET BREK 22—

e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

Company information

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 21 May
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman lIslands and its shares have
been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

The Company is domiciled in the Cayman Islands and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681GT, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and 12th Floor, Prestige Tower,
23-25 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
respectively.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (k&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. The adoption of these new and
revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes
to the Group’s accounting policies applied in these
financial statements for the years presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 35).

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for year ended
31 March 2009 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and
the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 34.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (k&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company, whether directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. Minority interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Minority interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement as an allocation of the total profit
or loss for the year between minority interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the
minority, are charged against the Group’s interest
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment
to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such
profits until the minority’s share of losses previously
absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(h)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (K5

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the Group
and other parties, where the contractual arrangement
establishes that the Group and one or more of the
other parties share joint control over the economic
activity of the entity.

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method and is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in
the Group’s share of the jointly controlled entity’s net
assets. The consolidated income statement includes
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the jointly controlled entities for the year.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the jointly controlled
entity. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in the
jointly controlled entity is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled
entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its jointly
controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (B&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination over the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(h)(ii)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

(i) ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(h)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(if)

(i)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives at the
following annual rates:

Machinery 10.0% — 20.0%
Furniture and fixtures  9.5% — 31.7%
Office and computer 20.0%
equipment
Leasehold 20.0% or over the
improvements remaining terms of

leases (whichever is
shorter)
Motor vehicles 20.0% — 30.0%
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the estimated net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series

of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group

determines that the arrangement conveys a right to

use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of

time in return for a payment or a series of payments.

Such a determination is made based on an evaluation

of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless

of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (k&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(9)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments, of
such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost of the assets over
the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely
the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the
life of the asset, as set out in note 2(f). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(h)(ii).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting
period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Leased assets (Continued)

2. TESETBE®E)

(9 CHEZREGE)

(iii) Operating lease charges (i) BEHEEH
Where the Group has the use of assets held MAEEEFREBELEHER
under operating leases, payments made under BrBEZFERE  BIREME
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal Btz eERBEBmEE
instalments over the accounting periods covered SHHEA UEFEEER
by the lease term, except where an alternative Bk - MEME AR T )E
basis is more representative of the pattern of BHwRBMEHEEEMEEZ
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. W R AIBRIN - BIRIHE B2
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit BRERERAMEL FHE
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net RIBMRE B Eih - A
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are TREEL 2 THEEER
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period Bk ©
in which they are incurred.

(h) Impairment of assets (hy EBER®E
(i) Impairment of receivables (i) ERE R E

Receivables that are stated at cost are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and
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— significant changes in the technological, — BB -WiE - KEIOR
market, economic or legal environment that BREBEEEAREMY

have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (k&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other receivables, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

2. TESETBE®E)

(h) Impairment of assets (Continued) (hy EEREE)

(i)  Impairment of receivables (Continued) () ERFTEREE)
Impairment losses are written off against BEEEEZEBEEEETT
the corresponding assets directly, except for WisE - MERIEMWE HRIERE
impairment losses recognised in respect of h FE WK IR FTHERR 2 B (B B 18
trade and other receivables, whose recovery s - EeJURE 1445 & Al &
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this B IERAT RE AR BIBR S o 7E
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts BIERT @ REEZBEEIEFE
are recorded using an allowance account. When AEFERLE - E4XKBE{EM
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, AT B AR RS - 3R A A
the amount considered irrecoverable is written el e EEEEERE S
off against trade and other receivables directly T8 N Ho b e W IE Mg - T E
and any amounts held in the allowance account A BEZES B MR EERA
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent BEZEENeRE - Higl
recoveries of amounts previously charged to EBREFABRER eBEERE
the allowance account are reversed against BEAREE - BER EMmE
the allowance account. Other changes in the BREHEKEBEEEME
allowance account and subsequent recoveries TRENIBRER -
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment of other assets (i) BRMEEZHE

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

REBE R R RSN
MEMKIR - UEERB BT
SBERATEEA L IRRE
ok (fin [ B B AR SN ) i E HER
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— investments in subsidiaries and joint - RMBRARAEDRE
ventures; and Z2’”E &
—  goodwill, - mEo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (k&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

—  Recognition of impairment losses
(Continued)

will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

—  Reversals of impairment losses

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare interim financial reports
in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first three, six and nine
months of the financial year. At the end of each of
such interim periods, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see notes 2(h)(i) and (ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (k& FEEASN -

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

1)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 2(h)(i)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

)

(m)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest
and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(p)(i), trade and other
payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand and deposits with banks that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (k&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in The People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the
government in the PRC. The Group is required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of
payroll, to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme
is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. Contributions to this retirement benefit
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories at the balance
sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in share-based
payment reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the Black Scholes
model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the profit or
loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payment reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share-
based payment reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
share-based payment reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to accumulated
losses).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (B&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o)

Income tax

(i)

(if)

(i)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case it is
recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& Rk R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (B&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& Rk R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. XESFHBER®
(0) Income tax (Continued) (o) FTEH(E)

(iv) Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, (v) 2 HATHIE A5 B8 RO IE T TE 45 64
and movements therein, are presented separately REZE  HEEHHAE
from each other and are not offset. Current tax A5 REHE- - SHNHIEER
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and EMEERBEEERSELRR
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, R ANEEE S EERNE
if the Company or the Group has the legally REEEREEBHEAE
enforceable right to set off current tax assets W B & A TSRS 215
against current tax liabilities and the following TR AD RIS AT IE &
additional conditions are met: BERIELERIBAE :

— in the case of current tax assets and - EHNPEEERAE:
liabilities, the Company or the Group KRR RAEEGEE
intends either to settle on a net basis, or FREARELE T E
to realise the asset and settle the liability REEZRESES
simultaneously; or & 3k

— in the case of deferred tax assets and - EBEIEWMBEBEEIBE:
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied ZEEERBRENAR
by the same taxation authority on either: B — B ATH

F-EBRZRERE
A

—  the same taxable entity; or — [A—ERHNEE:
57
— different taxable entities, which, in - TRAERREE -
each future period in which significant ZEERBTE LR
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or BB REEIRER IR
assets are expected to be settled or BEBERELER
recovered, intend to realise the current HEEWREZ FE
tax assets and settle the current tax RIRAAME IR SRR A
liabilities on a net basis or realise and EFREHBTIAE
settle simultaneously. ENFEEHBIEA

ZREBERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 SRSk « ¥ LA TTEIR)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as
deferred income within other payables and
accrued charges. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of
any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 2(p)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in other payables and accrued
charges in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& Rk R KfzT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 SRSk « ¥ LA TTEIR)

2. TESFTBE®E)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and () ERHZHEER BERIRE
contingent liabilities (Continued) &(&)
(ii)  Provisions and contingent liabilities (i) BERXAERE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (k&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,

if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the distribution sale of cosmetic
and skin care products and the sale of other
health and beauty products is recognised when
goods are delivered at the customers’ premises
which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the provision of beauty and
slimming services

Revenue from the provision of beauty and
slimming services is recognised in profit or loss
in proportion to the stage of completion of the
service contract. Revenue is also recognised in
profit or loss in respect of the deferred income
upon the expiry of the service contract.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Management and consultancy fee income

Management and consultancy fee income is
recognised when services are rendered.

FERASN - HIAETTEIR)

2. EESFTBE®E)

(a)

Wz 2 HERR

AN B EERALKE - M
Yeas MR (RR3E A ) BE R SE AT &

g

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

AR R B R T

HEE

KB $HHE A M B E
FIHEHEMREREREMZ
WanNEmTEERP ZYE
BANEFPREAREEMNE M
K B R 2 R R R B & B ¥R
) FERR o Was T EIRIEER
HEAMHER - I 2 HBUEMR
BHITH o

KEEREBRMEIRHZ K
#

KERMHED MRS RS 2K
SR E K 2 TR PIRE

HHER - W MR RBE K E
m B BLRE W AN IR 25 7R o

FIE LA

R B4R PR E I 0%
SRR -

EHERZHERA

BN FEAERARRERS

RFRERR o

Annual Report 2009 4= FE i #

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 % ¥ A Rt A 5]




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& Rk R KfzT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transactions dates.

The results of foreign currencies are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised directly in a separate component of
equity. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated
at the foreign exchange rate the applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
equity which relate to that foreign operation is included
in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (B&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(1)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party

is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control the
Group or exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& Rk R KizT

(BRAEEHI -

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products or
services (business segment), or in providing products
or services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment),
and rewards that are different from those of other

which is subject to risks

segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment as the secondary reporting
format for the purposes of these financial statements.
Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis to that segment. For example, segment assets
may include inventories, trade receivables and property,
plant and equipment. Segment revenue, expenses,
assets and liabilities are determined before intra-group
balances and intra-group transactions are eliminated as
part of the consolidation process, except to the extent
that such intra-group balances and transactions are
between group entities within a single segment. Inter-
segment pricing is based on similar terms as those
available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used
for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets,
tax balances, corporate and financing expenses.

interest-bearing loans, borrowings,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 SRSk « ¥ LA TTEIR)

3. Turnover 3. EHEH

The principal activities of the Group are the distribution sale REBEFEEBRADHEE LML ES
of cosmetic and skin care products, provision of beauty Em - RHEED RS KIEE MR
and slimming services and sale of other health and beauty EREREM °

products.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods supplied EXEBIERNEFPIRBErERZBERERE
to customers, net of discounts, returns, value added tax - RE - WEMKEMBER - AR
or other sales taxes; and service income from provision R EREFED M LR Z RIS W AR &=
of beauty and slimming services, net of discounts. The T FR - REFEEBRR2EEEER
amount of each significant category of revenue recognised W e EEMT

in turnover during the year is as follows:

2009 2008
—EBhF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care %3 #5 #5 &/t N & B FE 364,985 344,563
products
Provision of beauty and slimming services 232 [ @52 AR 7% (47 51) 70,290 99,935
(note)
Sale of other health and beauty products S5 EMRERERE S 2,641 2,323
437,916 446,821
Note: Included in the revenue from provision of beauty and slimming Kiat 0 FEAKRBIRHEARANRMERG 2 MR
services was HK$36,350,000 (2008: HK$39,626,000) arising & #836,350,0008 T(ZEZT )\ £ :
from the realisation in respect of the deferred income upon the 39,626,000/ 70) WA RKEE 4 fEmE
expiry of the service contracts. BIRBEIEWAFTEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

4. Other revenue and net (loss)/income 4, HttWER(EER), WA EEHE
2009 2008
—EENE “ETN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Other revenue Hih gz
Management and consultancy fee income B8 N A E A 1,053 3,383
Interest income FLEA 141 276
Others HA 224 88
1,418 3,747
Other net (loss)/income Hih(58E) WA FE
Subsidy income from the PRC government B B ff 7 B4 A 1,094 1,113
Reversal of impairment loss on trade FEWE 57 IE 2 R E & 1R Rl
receivables (note 18(b)) (Htat 18(b)) 185 172
Net foreign exchange loss bE 5 &85 5 (1,573) (9)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and H&E % « #R R HE T
equipment BEFE (124) (181)
Other income/(loss) Ha A (EE) 237 (124)
(181) 971
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 sERR5h « ¥ A TL3IR)

5. (Loss)/profit before taxation 5. BBiA(EE) BF
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived after charging: BRERT(EE), BFEHMBRTIEE -
2009 2008
—EEhE —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(a)  Finance costs (a) REE
Interest on bank loans IRITERFIB 1,549 861
Interest on loan payable to a J,EH HEEERZFE
director — 32
Finance charges on obligations BhERERE 2B E A
under finance leases 30 48
1,579 941
(o)  Staff costs (b) BIKA
Salaries, allowances and other e R R EAMEA
benefits 40,472 40,763
Contributions to defined ATERFGRIRET 8 2 H 3R
contribution retirement plans 4,372 4,286
44,844 45,049
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(BRZAEEBAIN - B

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED)

5.

BITHIR)

(Loss)/profit before taxation (Continuea) 5. BBiAI(EE) BFGE)
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived after charging: MR ET(EE) / BANEHEBR T &E :
(Continued) (#&)
2009 2008
—EEBhEF —EENEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR FET
(c) Other items: (c) HEMIgE
Cost of inventories sold and FTERERERS
services provided (note (i) AN (B2 () 359,450 344,809
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BRI BN 747 751
Depreciation on property, plant and VI - R EERETE
equipment
— leased assets — BEHEEE 462 329
— owned assets — BHEEE 10,116 7,472
Reinstatement cost of leased HEMEEENAR
premises (note (ii)) (Bta (i) = 630
Impairment losses B EE
— trade receivables (note 18(b)) — BWE FFIE
(K17F18(b)) 552 362
— other receivables (note 18(i) — Hip U ks
(HtaE180)) 3,582 —
Write-off of other receivables EAth R U SR IE M 5H 2,002 —
Donation | 368 164
Operating lease rentals: minimum KEHERSD -
lease payments ®EEMNHES
— property and display locations - MERBERCERS
rentals 18,987 16,708
— other equipment — Hithz& 175 424

Note: /3/7555 .

(i)  Cost of inventories sold and services provided include 0] BEEFEE &E%fﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁl
HK$2,243,000 (2008: HK$1,974,000) relating to staff costs and EXZK&T % 2,243,000 T(Z T T N\
depreciation, which amount is also included in the respective total F 11,974 BT RN EEE
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 5(b) for each type Y55 \J ﬁ x—jzpﬁ E5(b) Wi EE 2 FE R
of expense. 4azE -

(i) Under a tenancy agreement, a subsidiary was obligated to (ii) BE—EBEER:E  —HNBAREET
reinstate the leased office premises to a condition in accordance igﬂj‘ﬁ&;}g@*%%§ﬁé}%\£gz§;ﬁ
with the landlord’s standard specifications. Accordingly, BZMRR o Bt BE—THBEE T2
HK$630,000 was paid by a subsidiary during the year ended Ejﬁmm B ARIREE ST NE=
31 March 2008 in connection with the reinstatement of leased =t+—HAIFEAREBEECHEMED
premises based on a surrender agreement entered into with the gzﬁ 630,000/ 7T °
landlord.

Apart from the above, during the years ended 31 March 2008 B%LL%M\ BE_TENER_ZFTAH
and 2009, the Group had also entered into certain tenancy ZA=t+—BIEERN REB D]
agreements whereas the Group is obligated to reinstate the jgﬂFﬁngg,ﬁi Bl X"EBEEEE
leased office premises and slimming centers. However, no ECOHERAESMELBED L - Rl -
provision for reinstatement of leased premises is made by B M AR Sk ] A EECIRERMABRA
the Group in this regard since the magnitude of the possible MR AREESIEBGE  WAEBETEZRE

reinstatement is unknown and therefore such future cost cannot
be reasonably estimated.

Annual Report 2009 4£ £ # #7
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 s = A FR A

ECHEEMEELRE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 sERR5h « ¥ A TL3IR)

6.

Income tax in the consolidated income 6.
statement

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents:

Current tax — PRC Enterprise EHHE — hE
Income Tax TEFREBH
Provision for the year (note 25(a)) FNEAE (I 25(a))
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BEFERETR
prior years (ERZEHME)
Deferred tax ELEBIE

Origination and reversal of temporary A N E
differences (note 25(b)(i)) =R (KT 25(0)())

Income tax expense A X

(i) No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made
for 2009 (2008: HK$Nil) as the Company and
its subsidiaries sustained tax losses or have
no assessable profit for Hong Kong Profits Tax
purposes.

On 27 February 2008, the Financial Secretary
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government announced a decrease in the Profits
Tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% which is applicable
to the Group’s operations in Hong Kong as from
the year ended 31 March 2009. This decrease
is taken into account in the preparation of the
Group’s financial statements in respect of the
measurement of the opening balances of deferred
tax assets and liabilities.

mEWBERAZAER

() BAKSER T BIEK -

2009 2008
—EThEF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,329 1,684

53 (3,197)

1,382 (1,513)
(343) 2,866
1,039 1,353

ABEAMNERME - HRAR
EIE - PNCIESC TRy SE s
K EERTE AT - R
—TENFELBRBNEHE
w(ZFETN\EFE TBT) °

RZEZNF-_A-_++tH"
BB RITTIIR BUFT B R A
RAMBAERHER17.5%
FIEE16.5% HHE-_ZZ
NF=ZA=+—HI-FELHE
ARAREE 2 EBES - L
R R B EE 2 B SRR
ERrEREHBEEEREEZ
HAWIEERR ERTEERA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

6. Income tax in the consolidated income
statement (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

represents: (Continued)

(if)

(i)

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong is
charged at the appropriate current rate of taxation
ruling in the relevant tax jurisdictions.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of
the Tenth National People’s Congress passed
the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC where
the PRC enterprise income tax rate has been
unified to 25% with effect from 1 January 2008.
The enterprise income tax rate applicable to the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC is
25% in 2009 (2008: ranging from 25% to 33%).

The change in the carrying amount of the deferred
tax assets and liabilities, as a result of the change
in tax rates in Hong Kong and the PRC, was
recognised in the consolidated income statement
of the Group for the years ended 31 March 2009
and 2008 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 sERR5h « ¥ A TL3IR)

6. Income tax in the consolidated income 6. MEWBRAZMEHR &)
statement (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and b) FIEHATEREARETEZS
accounting (loss)/profit at the applicable tax rates: sT(Es1B) B 2 HiK
2009 2008
ZEThEF ZETN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT(E1B), BT (33,420) 3,192
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before BRERI(EBB), Bz E&
taxation, calculated at the rates WE - RERAREEEEK
applicable to profits in the countries RN HETE
concerned (3,660) 285
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses  TA[HIKRFASZ 2 T2 796 1,786
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBIMA BB E (306) (2,308)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERAREAHIBEE 2
recognised R 3,537 1,511
Tax effect on temporary differences not  KFERE b =58 7 B iE 5/ 2
recognised 513 45
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFEEETIRS
(FRFEREE) 53 (272)
Effect of changes in tax rates MEEH s wE - 818
Others HAh 106 (512)
Actual tax expense BERBIEMR 1,039 1,353
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% B 584N « ¥ LA A TT5IR )

7. Directors’ remuneration 7. EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the disclosure RIBFEBRRERIE 16112 HERTEM
requirement of section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies EREBE2EEMUT ¢

Ordinance is as follows:

Salaries, allowances Retirement scheme
Directors’ fees and benefits in kind contributions Total
EzHe Fe RMRENAG BIRGHEIRR af
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“BINE —FT)\F ZBEAE —FTT)\F ZEBEAE —IT)\F ZBEAE —TT)\F
HK$000  HK$'000 =~ HKS$’000 HK$'000 | HK$'000 HK$'000 = HKS$'000  HK$'000
Az TET A7 TET AT T FE7 TET

Executive directors BiTES
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, REMET

Shirley - - 2,573 2,713 12 12 2,585 2,725
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, REELE

Frankie - - 600 600 12 12 612 612
Mr. Lee Man Kwong B FERZ

(retired on ZENE=ZA

19 March 2008) ThREM) - - - 600 - 12 - 612
Independent non- BUEHTES

executive directors
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing FEBLE 10 77 - - - - 10 77
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin -~ BZEB %4 30 30 - - - - 30 30
Ms. Hui Yat Lam F-ELT(RZ

(appointed on TENF=AT

10 March 2008) REZE) 60 4 - - - - 60 4
Mr. Ho Yiu Ming fARAEE(R=

(deceased on TRLETIA

9 December 2007) SUBEHE) - 4 - - - - — 41

100 152 3,173 3,913 24 36 3,297 4,101
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% B B34 « ¥ TFIR)

8. Individuals with highest emoluments 8. ERE¥FAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two hE&EaFHFATH  WME(ZTEZTNF

(2008: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other three (2008: three) individuals are as follows:

ME)REE EMeFBRERME
7o BRI =ZR(ZFTNF ZR)IALZ

& @zmmT

2009 2008
—EZhE —ET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and other emoluments e kEMmie 2,472 2,621
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGTEIH R 36 36
2,508 2,657
The emoluments of the three (2008: three) individuals with ZH(ZEEN\F ZR )R FATZHEE
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: RTHIEE -
2009 2008
—EZhE —ETN\F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
HK$ Nil - HK$1,000,000 =702 1,000,000 87T 3 3
9. Loss attributable to equity shareholders of 9. AQRERFEAEGERE

the Company

ARBEREEABNGREABEBEER
AN EREREIE 2 EI8 170,000 7T
—ZFZT\4E 1 490,000/87T) °

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of HK$170,000 (2008:
HK$490,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.
10. Dividend 10. RE
EFEWTERBENEBE_ZETNF=H
S+ -—BLEFEZRE(ZZEZNE:
) o

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2009 (2008: HK$Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

11. Loss per share
(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of HK$30,651,000 (2008: HK$55,000)
and the weighted average of 959,880,000 (2008:
906,421,475) ordinary shares in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at 1 April
Effect of shares issued (note 28(c)(ii)

Weighted average number of ordinary

I 88

shares at 31 March

(b) Diluted loss per share

The calculation of diluted loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of HK$30,651,000 (2008: HK$55,000)
and on the weighted average number of 959,880,000
(2008: 906,421,475) ordinary shares.

The diluted loss per share calculations have not
included the outstanding share options as at 31 March
2009 and 2008 since the effect is anti-dilutive.
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1. BREE

(a)

REUA—HZBE#TEEK
(K13t 28(c)(i))

R=ZA=t—RZERBK

(b)

BREFER

BREANBBENRAAANLER
%= A A FE 15 B 830,651,000
B (= ZEZ )\F : 55000% 7T )
KEFERNE BT 2 E B INETFH
£0959,880,000 (= & =T N\ F :
906,421,475 R)ETEIAT -

BERNETFITE
2009 2008
—EBhEF —TE)N\F
959,880,000 666,900,000
— 239,521,475
959,880,000 906,421,475
SREEESE
BREEE B IR AR AR E

@ H AFE(L B8 30,651,000 78 T

ZEZZ)\F 55,0008 ) REB
Ri% Hn#E S 1527 959,880,000 f% ( — =
T )\4F : 906,421,475 )5HE -

HR_ZEZNFEFR=ZFZENF=H
—t—HERTEZEREEAR
HETE WRFESREEERE
B B IELA o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (f B4 84N + HASTFIR)

12. Segment reporting 12. 2 E®RE
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s DEERTIAERE 2 ¥ Kbl o E
business and geographical segments. Business segment 27 EB D AR RER 2 NE T
information is chosen as the primary reporting format MEBERA  AIBENER EER
because this is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial EABETERELK -
reporting.
Business segments ES S|
The Group comprises the following main business segments: NEBEBUATEZXEBDEAK -
(i)  Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products () PDEESEHEEEEER
(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services (i) REEDREBRE
(i)  Sale of other health and beauty products (i) HEEMREEERESR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (b ZAEFERRSN + HLABTTIIR)

12. Segment reporting (Continued) 12. 7 E®WE®)
(a) Business segments (a) E¥o8E
Provision of beauty and Sale of other health and Inter-segment
Distribution sale slimming services beauty products elimination Total
AHBE REZARERRH ﬁ%ﬁfm RERER AEBEH 4
2009 2008 2009 2008 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
JEEpE CIR)\E  ZEEpE CET)E :iihﬁ CER)\E  ZEEpE 3% | ZBEpE CRR)E
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK8 000 HK§'000 HK$000
-2 AT FAT FAT &1 AT FAT AT &1
Revenue
External sales 364,085 344,563 70,290 99,935 2641 2303 - - 437916 446,821
Inter-seqment sales - - - - - 693 - (693) - -
Total revenue ligatat 364,985 344,563 70290 99,93 2,641 3016 - (693) 437916 446,821
Segment result 2% 1919 3182 (26,926) 17,494 (287) (2.200) (25,294) 18,356
Unallocated coporale ~ AAERAHR
£X0BNSes - (6,373) (19,063
Unalocated comporate ~~ AAEATEMME
ofher revenue 3108 4840
(Loss)/proft from operations 28,564) 4133
Fmance cosls (1,579) [949)
Share of losses of jointly
controlled entities 821 -
(Loss)/pro before tasafion AT (62) /2 (33,420) 3192
Taxation i (1,039) (1,359
(Loss)/proft after taxation (34,459) 1839
Impaiment of
— Trade receivables 552 i - - - 18 - - 552 302
— Other receivables - - 3,562 - - - - - 3,582 -
Write-off of other PR
receivables ) = - 2,002 - = - = - 2,02 -
Depreciaton %ﬁé
~ Segment i
depreciation 1,21 814 9,294 6,710 13 3 - - 10,578 7563
— Unalocated - ROELANE
corporate
depreciation - 28
10,578 7801
Segment assets HEBE N
— Property, plant and - #”% ERVEL
squipment 3443 3300 19,654 11,861 30 u - - 2121 15,208
— Interests n oty - REREsIEE
controlled entities i - - 2,585 - - - - - 2,585 -
— Other assets 73,046 90,551 PINIK] 25,551 4,185 4,3% - - 105,844 120,498
Unallocated corporate LN
assets 15477 3
Total assets BEaE 147,033 167483
Segment lblities REE (36,483) (51,461) (2n114) (26,552) (551) (15) - - (64,148) (78,028)
Unallocated corporate %‘ﬂ WL
liabiftes (27,899) (2,456)
Total liabiities qEeE (92,047) (80,484)
Capital expenditure BA g L
— Segment capltal - HEEAR
expenditure ) 1,619 128 17 8995 12,956 - - - 14792 10,230
— Unallocated - FAELTER
cororate captal X
expenditure 36 560

14,828 10,790
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% B B34 « ¥ TFIR)

12. Segment reporting (Continued) 12. 7ERE#
(b) Geographical segments (b) tHhiEo%E

The Group’s businesses are participated in two REE 2 ZHERMIEE ZLEIRE
principal economic environments. The PRC is a major K& hBl ARNEBEERZE
market for all the Group’s businesses. Hong Kong is M5 BEARREEZETRHER
a major market for provision for beauty and slimming BZEEMS -
services.
In presenting information on the basis of geographical Pz H B2 ERE - 55EK
segments, segment revenue is based on the HEREPHEHE D  c DEEER
geographical locations of customers. Segment assets BEARIREEMEMES -

and capital expenditure are based on the geographical
locations of assets.

The PRC Hong Kong Total

i £ &t
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
SEENE IR mt 2 Y12 It S Y2 SEENE ERNE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

TE7r FE7 A% FE1 AT FET

Revenue from HNEEP 2 E

external

customers 391,918 383,167 45,998 63,654 437,916 446,821
Segment assets PEEE 101,568 103,760 45,465 63,723 147,033 167,483
Capital expenditure ~ FRE£ZEAHT

incurred during

the year 10,900 1,908 3,928 8,882 14,828 10,790
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

13. Property, plant and equipment 13. Y135 - HBERRE
(a) The Group (@) #A£H

Office

and

Furniture computer

and equipment Leasehold Motor
Machinery fixtures $BAZER  improvements vehicles Total
BE HAREERE ERRE  RENREE hE aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET TAT TET TET TET
Cost: B :

At 1 April 2007 RZZT+ENA-A 13,16 3,010 5,939 23,239 4525 49,829
Reclassification EFipE 140 282 (422) - - -
Exchange adjustments BEHEE 216 84 252 557 301 1410
Additions hE 193 195 993 7,597 1812 10,790
Disposals e - - (86) (8,839) (1,708) (10,628)
At 31 March 2008 WZZE/\E=F=1-H 13,665 3,571 6,676 22,554 4,935 51,401
At 1 April 2008 WZZEN\EMA-A 13,665 3,571 6,676 22,554 4935 51,401
Exchange adjustments EiAE 66 34 73 218 116 507
Additions hE 3,945 346 3 8,485 1,74 14,828
Disposals e (244) (90) (19) (1,464) (1,468) (3,485)
At 31 March 2009 WZZENE=A=T-H 17432 3,861 6,841 29,793 5324 63,251
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (f B4 84N + HASTFIR)

13. 1% - BBERRE@E)

13. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(a) The Group (Continued) (@) EKEEE)

Office

and

Furniture computer

and equipment Leasehold Motor
Machinery fixtures HOZER  improvements vehicles Total
B GAREExE EhRE  REMESE e aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THr &z FErT 7ErT FEr Tz
Accumulated ZitiE
depreciation:
At 1 April 2007 RZEStEEA-A 5,882 1,639 2,800 17,202 2,328 29,851
Reclassification ENNE 2% 9 (122) - - -
Exchange adjustments ERAE 80 19 87 348 163 697
Charge for the year EREE 1,860 45 974 3812 740 7801
Written back on disposals ~ HEREE - - (77) (8,421) (1,187) (9,685)
At 31 March 2008 RZEFN\E=A=+-A 7,846 211 3,662 12,941 2,044 28,664
At 1 April 2008 RZEZ\ENA-H 7,846 211 3,662 12,941 2,044 28,664
Exchange adjustments EiAE 31 11 8 128 49 27
Charge for the year ERERE 2183 455 958 6,089 913 10,578
Written back on disposals ~ H/EREE (20) (90) (197) (1,464) (996) (2.767)
At 31 March 2009 WZZENFZA=T-H 10,040 2547 4,451 17674 2010 36,722
Carrying value: BEE:

At 31 March 2009 RZEENEZR=T-H 7,392 1314 2,390 12119 3,314 26,529
At 31 March 2008 WZZEN\FZA=T-H 5819 1,400 3,014 9,613 2,801 2,737

R-ZZEZNFZA=+—08 AEBRERE
HERSE 2 #eE 7 REEA2,691,0008 T(=
ZTE)\F : 1,126,000/ 7T) °

As at 31 March 2009, the carrying value of machinery
held under finance leases of the Group was
HK$2,691,000 (2008: HK$1,126,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

14. Goodwill
Cost: A
At 1 April REA—H
Disposals (note) & (A1)
At 31 March KR=AR=+—H
Accumulated impairment: ZitEE -
At 1 April REHA—H
Written back on disposal (note) RO (f5E)
At 31 March W=A=+—H
Carrying amount: BREE -
At 31 March KR=R=+—H

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group had written
back the cost and accumulated impairment of goodwill of
HK$712,000 upon the completion of the voluntarily wind-up of
Highlight International Investment Limited.

Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies as set out in note 2(e).

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating unit
(“CGU”) in relation to the provision of beauty and slimming
services in Hong Kong and the PRC; and the sale of
cosmetic and skin care products in the PRC.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period.

14. BHE

The Group
£ EE

2009 2008
—EBNEF —TENEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFET T
271 983
— (712)

271 271

21 733
— (712)

21 21

250 250

W - RNBEZTZENF=ZA=T—HLFE "
REXEABEBRREBRARZBBESR
% AEBCOBEIEZRARRFRE
712,000 7T °

BRI 2(e) PIEl 2 AR B SRR

o

<
i

BE N EE NP RRHMEE RER
B+ DA R AP B 55 (il N % 58 E em 1T 0
REASBEZReEABM([HREELE
fiz]) e

ReEL B 2 A WE € iR EREER
BHEEE - WEFEDERBRRER
EoEZ AF M BREEL ZRER
SR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 sERR5h « ¥ A TL3IR)

14. Goodwill (Continued) 14. BE#®)
Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculations are: FREBEFEFEZMACEERSRA
2009 and 2008
—BENER
—sEng
— Gross margin — EF= 5% — 15%
— Discount rate — BhIR & 12%
Management determined the budgeted gross margin EEERBRERRLEUMSEERZ
based on past performance and its expectation for market EHMETREENE - fIEMR 2R
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and RRTAT - IR E R o
reflect specific risks.
The recoverable amount of the CGU is greater than its ReELBEMzAROeESRNERE
carrying amount. Any adverse change in assumptions could 18 o R&Z A A H 2 &) el 4 mT Ul
reduce the recoverable amount below carrying amount. ERERNERE -
15. Investments in and amounts due from/to 15. RfBRARIZREREW FE
. . . =1 =%
subsidiaries M B~ BIRKIE

The Company

KA
2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost LTI - R 3,664 3,664
Less: impairment losses JR OREEE (3,660) (3,660)
4 4
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B 8 R B FR0R 101,546 76,020
Less: impairment losses JB REE 1B (18,748) (18,873)
82,798 57,147
Amounts due to subsidiaries DRI NGIE S 3,852 4,164
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

15. Investments in and amounts due from/to 15. RMB AR 2R EREW FE
subsidiaries (continued) N B TIRIE )
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, FEWFEN B AT A AEER . o8
interest free and repayable on demand. RIBIRESK(EE -
At 31 March 2009, the amounts due from subsidiaries AZETZNF=ZA=+—08  EBRHBL
amounting to HK$125,000 (2008: HK$Nil) were considered AIFRIE 125,000 T(ZEZENF : T8
as recoverable and, accordingly, a corresponding reversal of TO) AR ARUE - Eit - B EEZREES
impairment loss was recognised in the financial statements BRERBE_ZZTNF=A=+T—A1F
for the year ended 31 March 2009. FEZUBREPHER -
The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries UWTRERER_ZETNF=HA=1T—H
as at 31 March 2009. The class of shares held is ordinary B ARIFEE - BB AN - TR
unless otherwise stated. miER AL ER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (B&

FERASN - HIAETTEIR)

subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of company

DRR

Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. (note (j)

(i)

Sau San Tong China Holdings
Limited (note (i) (472 ()

Smartime International Investment

Limited (note (i)
ERERREBRAA ML)

Sau San Tong China Investment Ltd.

(note (i) (4i#4)

Wise Fortune Holdings Carp.
(note (i) (414

Sau San Tong China Development

Limited (note (i) (4722 ())

Gold Lane International Holdings

Ltd. (note (i) (42 ()

Victory Assets Holdings Ltd.
(note (i) (41 4)

Brillant Concept Co. Ltd. (note (i)

Witp)

Bright Rainbow Investments Ltd.

(note (i) (Hi#4)

Sau San Tong Beauty Figure Limited

LN

Place of
incorporation

il ARE

British Virgin Islands
EBRAES

British Virgin Islands
EBRAES

British Virgin Islands
EBRAES
British Virgin Islands
EBRAES

British Virgin Islands
EBRAES

British Virgin Islands
EBRAES

British Virgin Islands
EBRAES

British Virgin Islands
EBRAES

British Virgin Islands
EBRAES

British Virgin Islands
EBRAES

Hong Kong
&%

15. Investments in and amounts due from/to

Place of
operation

LESuE

Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
Bk
Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
Bk
Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
B%

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRRBRRAZE

1,000 shares of US$1 each
1000 REREE 1 2T 2R

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEI ET KRR

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEI ET KRR
100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREE 1 ZT2 RN

10 shares of US$1 each
10REREE 1 ET B

10 shares of US$1 each
10REREE 1 ET B

100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREE 1 ZT2 RN

100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREE 1 ZT2 RN

1 share of US$1 each
1REREEI T2 RA

100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREE 1 ZT2 RN

10,000 shares of HK$1 each
10000 R BRAE 1 BT RH

15. RIB QAR 2REREWR &

5Bt A T FRIE (47)

Proportion of ownership interest

BERRELD
Group’s Held Held
effective by the by a

interest Company subsidiary
AREZE ARLT AKELR
RiEs 2] 5
100% 100% -

100% 100% -

100% 100% -

100% 100% -

100% 100% -

100% 100% -

100% 100% -

100% 100% -

100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%

Principal activities

TERH

Investment holding

e

Investment holding

e

Investment holding

e

Investment holding

e

Investment holding

e

Investment holding

e

Inactive
Tmax

Investment holding

e

Investment holding

e

Provision of management
consultancy service

EHERTARE

Sale of health and beauty
products
HERRRERER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& Rk R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

15. RfB AT RER B &
5Bt B A T FRIE (47)

15. Investments in and amounts due from/to
subsidiaries (Continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

RERERLD
Group’s Held Held
effective by the bya
Place of Place of Particulars of issued interest Company subsidiary
Name of company incorporation operation and paid up capital AREZE  HALE BWEAF  Principal activities
ARER ARALS 3k BEARMRRAGE Rk 2] BE IBER
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology  Hong Kong Hong Kong 18,750 shares of HKS1 each 100% - 100%  Provision of beauty and
Healthy Trim Institute Limited &% &k 18,750 REREE slimming services
EIEREERRRIE 1AL BH RUZTRUBRS
R LERAE
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology  Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HKS1 each 100% - 100%  Provision of beauty and
Healthy Trim Institute (TST) o &k 10000 REREET AT R slimming services
Limited RUZTRUBRS
EaEREXRRRERRERL
(RYE8)BRAA
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology  Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100% - 100%  Provision of beauty and
Healthy Trim Institute (Causeway ~ &8 o 100 RERAE 1 BT RA slimming services
Bay) Limited RUZTRERRS
EAEREXRRRERRERL
(FE8)5RAT
Sau San Tong Management Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100% - 100%  Provision of management
BHEERARAT e B 100RERAE 1 BTZRA consultancy service
REEEHARS
Sau San Tong Health Food Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100% - 100%  Inactive
EIERRARARAT B Bk 100REBREE 1 BT RA grex
SST Advertising Agency Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HKS1 each 100% - 100%  Provision of advertising
Bt EERRERLA Bh Bk 10000 REREE agency senvice
1AL B RERERERH
Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 1,000 shares of US$1 each 50% - 50%  Investment holding
(note ()) (47 4) EERUEE B 1000 EREE 1 2T 2 RS and provision
of management
consultancy service

RERRRREERSS
R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (B B4 5A4N « # LA TTFIR)

15.

Investments in and amounts due from/to 15.

subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of company

PEEL

Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute
(Hangzhou) Limited (notefi))
(&)

EE-EEBERBRAT (notes (i)
and (vi) (HizE ) Rvi)

LARGRIEEERAE
(notes (i) and (vii)
(B i) i)

—EARARK(RINERAR
(notes (i) and (vij)

(2 iy Bf))

—EREREE(MMER LA
(notes (v) and (vij)
(i ’i)))

Highlight International Trading
Limited
SHERZSERAR

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology
Healthy Trim Institute (Shatin)
Limited

EIEREXRREURRETD
(PB)ERAA

Sau San Tong (Shanghai)
Development Ltd. (note (i)
(Hizp)

Sau San Tong (Bejing) Investments
Limited (note (i) (#4)

Place of
incorporation

ERALLS
British Virgin Islands
ABRAER

The PRC
R

The PRC
R

The PRC
E

The PRC
R

Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong

B

British Virgin Islands

AERAES

British Virgin Islands
EBRRES

Place of
operation

E 3
Hong Kong
&%

The PRC
RH

The PRC
RH

The PRC
PE

The PRC
PE

Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong

Bk

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong
&%

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 % ¥ A Rt A 5]

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
ERTRARRAFE

100 shares of US$1 each
100REREEET &R

Registered capital
US$150,000
ihaR150,000% T

Registered capital
US$5,000,000
HE75,000,000%

Registered capital
HK$3,500,000
& 3,500,000 %7

Registered capital
HK$3,500,000
i MEA35000007

100 shares of HK$1 each
100 REREE 1 BT RS

100 shares of HK$1 each
100 REREE 1 BT RN

10 shares of US$1 each

10RERAE 1 XKD

100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREE 1 ZT2 RN

RHBLATRIZREREW FE
5Bt A T FRIE (47)

Proportion of ownership interest

REREELD
Group’s Held Held
effective by the bya

interest  Company subsidiary

AREZE  BALT HHELF
RE: @ BE  BA
1% - 51%
50% - 100%
51% - 5%
51% - 100%
51% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
50% - 50%
100% - 100%
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Principal activities

IEXH

Investment holding
REER

Provision of beauty and
slimming services

RUXARARRHE

Distribution sale of
cosmetic and skin care
products

MR IRERER

Provision of beauty and
slimming services

RUXARABRE

Provision of beauty and
slimming services

RUXARARRH

Inactive
gRER

Inactive

g
il H

Inactive
i

Investment holding

e

95




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& Rk R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

15. Investments in and amounts due from/to 15. RIBATIZREREW
subsidiaries (continued) N B TIRIE )
Proportion of ownership interest
BREERLA
Group’s Held Held
effective by the bya
Place of Place of Particulars of issued interest Company subsidiary
Name of company incorporation operation and paid up capital AREZE  HALE BWEAF  Principal activities
AAER ARALS 3k BEARMRRAGE Rigg 2] BE IBER
Machiko Enterprises Inc. (note (i) British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - 100%  Investment holding
() EBRTEE E 100REREE 1 ZTLRA REZR
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of USS1 each 51% - 51%  Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Limited (note (}) EBRUHES B 100 EREE 1 ETLRG RARRK
(W)
Winner Sight Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100% - 100%  Inactive
ERERAT 33 Bk 2hERAR AL RS Emex
BREZA(LR)ERAF otes  The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% - 100% Provision of beauty and
(v) and (vil)# (i () R4~ R E il HK$1,000,000 slimming services
& 71,000,000757 RUXTRABRE

(if)

(i)

(iv)

This subsidiary was established by the Group in 2009.

The financial statements of these entities are not required to be
audited under the laws of the British Virgin Islands, the country of
incorporation.

The financial statements of F&—FBEAERAR for the
financial years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 prepared
under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applicable in the
PRC have been audited by E/EZR AR @ tMEHMERAR.

The financial statements of E&HR4B{LHEERR AT for the
financial years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 prepared
under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applicable in the
PRC have been audited by Y& A EEATAER AR

The financial statements of —F B &R CGEII) BEAF for
the financial years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 prepared
under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applicable in the
PRC have been audited by FII 27 &S and FYIFES
RS ETA PR AR respectively.
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(i

(ii)

(iv)

IHBARR _EZNFHARERT -

CZEERIUBRRBAKLE

LB -EBERERANBE_TT L
E-TELFT-A=+—BULMBFE
ZHBBERRETDAAZ ARG H R
RIS - o b/ A 3 25 it D 9 5
ERAAE, -

—22)\

FERGHELEHEEERARNBE_TZ
FR-ZZTLFT_A=T—HILMEF
EZ2MBRERDBREPEERAZ ARG
%E‘Jgﬁ‘% WY EEFEEBRBRA
AIEZ -

—ERRERBECRIDERATDHE_F
ENEFER_BTLFFT_A=+—RA 1LY
BFEE M BRERDBRBTFEERZ AR
SEIRAGRE - DR RV ZZ A
EBERYIPESHMEBMERAR
EiZ o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% B4 B34k « ¥ TFIR)

15. Investments in and amounts due from/to
subsidiaries (Continued)

16.

Note: (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The financial statements of —E/S&EEELR (M) ARATF for
the financial years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 prepared
under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applicable in the
PRC have been audited by JTT XBE:TEISEHAER AT and
MNEZ SR EBFTER AT respectively.

The financial statements of FAAEXER (4bR) BRAA for the
financial period ended 31 December 2008 prepared under
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applicable in the PRC
have been audited by XEIF{E (IbR) SHRIEFTER AR

These entities established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned
enterprises.

These entities established in the PRC are sino-foreign joint-
venture enterprises.

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Share of net liabilities fE1E BIEFRE
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities & U L7125 4 F 82 K18 5,884 —

The amounts due from jointly controlled entities are

unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of

repayment. In the opinion of directors, these amounts are

not expected to be repaid within one year and are therefore

reclassified as non-current in the consolidated balance

sheet.

15. RMiIB AR 2 REREW HE
5Bt A T FRIE (47)

Brat - (&)

v —EEHEEXEWMMNERARNBE—ZF
ENFER_ETLFT_A=1+—HILH
BEREZMBEHRRDBRIBFEERZ AR
FERARE - WD R BT RE A
EBMER LA RMIMNEZ S FBPT
BRARER

(vi) PERAEEFURERAFBEE_ZZN
FHoA=+—HLEFRAB WHHRE
TRBEREEA 2 AR REGE - 1
Eﬁéift%(jtﬁ)§E+Eﬂi$i‘%ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁﬁa
% % °©

(vi)  WHERPEKI 2 ERAINEGEARE -

(viil)  HFERPEKIZ BERTIELERE -

16. RAEEFER 2 E®

The Group
AEEH
2009 2008
—EERE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

(3,299) —

2,585 —

ARG ERRAREEMR 2R
BETESRY EFZRA - WEFKBALD
BN -FREERE ARG EERE
KTPEMDMRIERE ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& Rk R KfzT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (k&5

BEEBRSN - HLABTTIIR)

16. Interests in jointly controlled entities 16. REREZEHERB 2= @)
(Continued)
Details of the jointly controlled entities as at 31 March 2009 RZTEENF=A=+—HBZHRAZEHE
are as follows: N

Proportion of ownership interest

BERRELH
Group’s Held Held
effective by the bya
Place of Place of Particulars of issued interest Company subsidiary
Name of joint venture incorporation operation and paid up capital AEEZE AmLRE BMELF  Principal activities
FELELH RaLEAR BT BRARBRRAE REs HR BE FEXR
Wealthy Sound Limited (note(i) Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HKS1 each 50% - 50%  Investment holding
SERRAAWAN) Bk Bh 10,000 BREE 1 AT REER
LR
EFEEHER IR ERAT The PRC The PRC Registered capital 50% - 100% Provision of beauty and
(notes (i and (i) B M US$150,000 slimming services
(Wit Rfin) A7 150,000% T REXARBERS
Note: /’zﬁi—f .
(i) As at 31 March 2008, the entire issued share capital of Wealthy () RZZEZNF=ZA=+—HB  FBERAQ
Sound Limited (“WSL”) was held by Sau San Tong (Beijing) AEE D z22HBEBTRAAARRA

Investments Limited (“BIL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the 2 2B W B2 FSau San Tong (Beijing)

(ii)

(iif)

Company. In March 2008, an agreement was entered between
BIL, Beauti-Good Limited (“BGL") and an individual where BIL and
BGL agreed to subscribe for new ordinary shares of WSL for a
consideration of HK$6,000,000 such that each of BIL and BGL
would hold a 50% of the enlarged issued share capital of WSL.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, new ordinary shares
were allotted by WSL to BIL and BGL according to the above-
mentioned agreement. Accordingly, the Group’s interest in WSL
was decreased from 100% to 50% and WSL has become a jointly
controlled entity of the Group.

EeEEMER (tR) GR2AA is a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise established in the PRC in July 2008 and is beneficially
owned by WSL.

The financial statements of E5EEHMER (LK) AERAR for
the financial period ended 31 December 2008 prepared under
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applicable in the PRC
have been audited by XEIF{E (3bFR) St EEATERAH

Annual Report 2009 4£ £ # #7

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 1& & % ¥ A B A W]

(il

Investments Limited ([BIL))#FH « RZZ
T )\4F = A ' BIL * Beauti-Good Limited
(IBGLJ) & —%& ALaIZiH - 3t - BIL
MBGLAERBEB 2 HMEARK  REA
6,000,000 % 7T + Bt BIL 2 BGL & B # #F
BEBEERDEITRAZ50% °

REBE-ZETNFE=-A=1+—HILFE "
R IR R bl 175 7% 7 BIL &2 BGL Fig 3 37 &
mAR o At ZK’ilﬁAiéz&é\ F1100%
WA EB0% - MEBDKAAREEZ HF

EHIERE

EEEIUETUFR)AERIATD/SN_-F
ENFELARPBEKIZIEBERLE
MERERES -

a2 eBERUR)BERARRE "
ZENEFEF_A=+—B LM BHE M
BHRRDBIBEFEERZ ARG RAE
2 WAHREFEEEUALR)BFEEBME
RAFIERZ -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 sERR5h « ¥ LA TL3IR)

16. Interests in jointly controlled entities

17.

(Continued)

Summary financial information on jointly controlled entities —

Group’s effective interest:

16. RAEFEFIEE 2w @)

HRZEHER — AEE2ERED M
BEMBE -

The Group
KEH

2009 2008
-3 -3 —EINF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FBT FET
Non-current assets IERBEE 3,909 —
Current assets MENEE 1,925 —
Current liabilities mEEE (9,133) -
Net liabilities BEFE (3,299) —
Income WA 1,693 -
Expenses =53 (4,970) —
Loss for the year FREIE (3,277) —

Inventories

(a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise:

17. &

@ ZEBEEREXRAZFEEHRE

The Group
AEE
2009 2008
—EEAF —EBEEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Merchandise 2K 5,641 6,689
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& Rk R KfzT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% S 584N + # LA TT5IR )

17. Inventories (Continued) 17. FE#)

(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as b) WEREAZZGFESEITOT
an expense is as follows:

The Group
AEE

2009 2008

—EZhEF ZEENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFECZERAEE 345,256 330,464

Write down of inventories FEMR 36 —

345,292 330,464

18. Trade and other receivables 18. EWE S RE R HEWFIE

The Group The Company
bS] NG|

2009 2008 2009 2008

“EThE “EENE “ZEZNF —ETN\F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET

Trade receivables W E 5308 35,018 35,968 - -

Less: allowance for - RERE
doubtful debts (fiaE18b))

(note 18(b)) (693) (326) - -

34,325 35,642 - —

Other receivables (note(l) — HEHEUEIE(HF() 13,856 15,953 = 809
Deposits and prepayments 124 RIER 208

(note(ii) (i) 12,357 12,5619 908 2,097

26,213 28,472 908 2,906

60,538 64,114 908 2,906
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 sERR5h « ¥ LA TL3IR)

18. Trade and other receivables (Continued) 18. EWE S FEREMEWFIE®)
Included in the Group’s deposits and prepayments were stARRBZ RS RBNFARES R
rental and utilities deposits of HK$4,459,000 (2008: 2R $ 4,459,000 8 T(=FF )\
HK$2,059,000), which is expected to be recovered after /E © 2,059,000 7T ) ';ﬁi\/ﬁiﬁft‘ﬁiﬁfﬁ
more than one year. All of the other trade and other féi%@ ° ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁlﬁ%ﬂfﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ%
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as WERIBTREHIN —F R EI KRR -
expense within one year.

Note: et -

(i) Included in the Group’s other receivables were advances 0] AP R B 7 A fh i U A B R 88 %
to slimming business partners of HK$7,236,000 (2008: R RN 2 IR 7,236,000/ (=T
HK$8,084,000), net of allowance for doubtful debt of F)\F 8,084,000/ 70 ) (HNFR R A B
HK$3,582,000 (2008: HK$NIl); prepayments for the set up of new 3,582, QL%%*EM(‘EE?AE 2,%15)) :
slimming projects in the PRC of HK$Nil (2008: HK$4,277,000); RepBls s b Ia e 2 BN FUEE
and advances to staff of HK$729,000 (2008: HK$2,478,000). BIL(ZTZEN\FE 14,077,00087T) i J

M8 T8 2 5KIE729,0008T(ZTZN
12,478,000 7T)

(i)  Included in the Group’s and the Company’s deposits and (i) EAREERANR RS KB KA
prepayments were trade deposits of HK$3,409,000 (2008: 7B B8 512 % 3,409,0008 T(ZFF
HK$4,775,000) and HK$Nil (2008: HK$Nil) and prepayment J\ % :4,775,00078 7T ) &%ﬁ% (;%
for the acquisition of a trademark of HK$715,000 (2008: TAF TETL)RBEEERZ BN
HK$1,915,000) and HK$715,000 (2008: HK$1,915,000) 715,000 JT(= = 2 J\ £ 11,915,000
respectively. 7 7T ) &715,000% (= E T )\ F

1,915,000 7T) °

(a) Ageing analysis (@) BRERDMT
Included in trade and other receivables are trade Ef’)\)@]ﬁﬁ?)%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁlﬁ
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with Z%,:FEHSZ;%%,TKIE‘L(?D%%EE}%1%) :
the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet HEHRNGEE AR
date:

The Group
AEE
2009 2008
—EBHEF ZEENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current BN &H 31,976 30,689
Less than 1 month past due wHR D HN 1 {E A 1,505 4,518
1 to 2 months past due BHAI1 Z= 28 A 67 136
More than 2 months but less than BHA2 = 418 A
4 months past due 75 46
More than 4 months but less than mH A= 12{@A
12 months past due 379 186
More than 12 months past due wEI12 (8 A A E 323 67
Amounts past due mHe R 2,349 4,953
34,325 35,642
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from JEUS R 550 TH e 3 53R H #8302 90
the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit HEH - AEEEEBRR 2#E—F
policy are set out in note 29(a). FHIBE NI FE29(a) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& Rk R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

18. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade receivables directly (see note 2(h)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debt
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, is as follows:

At 1 April REOA—H

Impairment loss recognised (note 5(c)) TR ZBIEEE(H:7E5(c)
Reversal of impairment loss (note 4) EBERD (fiE4)

At 31 March R=ZA=+—8

At 31 March 2009, the Group’s trade receivables of
HK$693,000 (2008: HK$326,000) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables related to invoices in disputes and
management assessed that the chance of recovery is
remote. Consequently, specific allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$693,000 (2008: HK$326,000) was
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.
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18. EWE Z AR HAbBUGE®)

(b)

e B 57 FRIR R (E

FEUS & 5 IR 2 R B B 18 T i A 3
BRRRE - BRIEAKEE MR E %
RIAZAREEEE - EZBERT
BB IR B Z R EYE 5 5 R M
(RHEE2(h)()) °

FR - RIEEE(BREERRILRE

BEGH) 2 EBHT
The Group
AEE
2009 2008
—EENF —EENEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
326 136
552 362
(185) (172)
693 326

R-_ZEZNFZA=Z+—RH  £&
B 2 B E 5 IA693,0008 (=
T2 )\ 1 326,000 70) W E B
EAEIRE - ZIE 5B E & KRRIE
NEEFZREEER mMEEERT
fHU B 2 AT RE AR AR o Bt - RER
5 51| # {8 693,000 T(ZEE )N
F 1 326,000 ) 2 H#R - NEE
WESZSERFAEAERR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% B4 B34k « ¥ TFIR)

18. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(c)

Trade receivables that are not impaired

Neither past due nor impaired

Less than 1 month past due wE D —1E A

1 to 2 months past due BHA1 = 28 A

More than 2 months past due but less #HI2 Z 4 {# A
than 4 months past due

More than 4 months but less than 12 #1814 & 12 & A
months past due

More than 12 months past due BHA12 & A LA =

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

18.

FEUR & 5 FR1R K EL A R IR IE ()

(c)

3 8l B 2 PE LWL BB 3% SRR

The Group
rEH

2009 2008
—BENF —ETENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
31,976 30,689
1,505 4,518
67 136
75 46
379 186
323 67
2,349 4,953
34,325 35,642

I 48 360 B K 3 R 18 2 FE WRIR TS
HEAWEARERCHRIEPA

EAHMEY ER{E 2 KRR T E
ZERNAREHRERFERLEZ
BUEFER REBEEBELR &
REEERYEERES - AER
T8 Al 2 8 E - MEEE M
ERBRZFERFELRERE
AEEY B XL HEHRIFA TR
Han e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& Rk R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% S 584N + # L0 T5IR )

19. Amounts due from/to related parties 19. B "FE{SEEE AN T FUE
The Group
A EEE

2009 2008

—EEAF —EEN\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Amounts due from minority shareholders & U /> 1A% 58 5018 15,148 17,482

Amounts due from related companies JEUE BE R RIFIB

(note) (Hat) 6,354 5,718

21,502 23,200

Amount due to a minority shareholder B — R DB R FIA 887 —
Note: A director and a key management personnel of certain Wi —REE N 25 THWBARZFEEE

subsidiaries has beneficial interest in each of the respective ABRZEBENRBAERERS -

related company.

The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured, FEW FENRAE A TRIBAEER . 08
interest free and repayable on demand. NBRERER -
20. Cash and cash equivalents 20. RERBAEEEY
The Group The Company
Xr5E PN

2009 2008 2009 2008

“BENEF —ZENE “EENE —TINF

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000

FE FET FET FET

Bank deposits RITER 5,678 5,539 - -

Cash of bank and inhand BT RFHEES 24,310 44,954 1,203 51

29,988 50,493 1,203 51
Included in the cash at bank was a deposit of HK$5,678,000 HABRTHRESAEMAEEBER ZIRTT@E
(2008: HK$5,539,000) pledged with a bank in respect of i # T —fER17 2 735,678,000 % 7T
bank facilities granted to the Group (see note 21). —ZFE N\ 4 : 5,539,000 7T ) (B M =

21) e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% B4 B34k « ¥ TFIR)

21. Bank loans, secured

At 31 March 2009, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

Within one year —FR

At 31 March 2009, the Group had revolving bank loan
facilities of HK$23,278,000 (2008: HK$22,711,000) upon
which interest was charged at rate of 5.35% to 5.44% per
annum (2008: 6.57% per annum) and were secured by:

(i) a corporate guarantee given by the Company, a
minority shareholder and a staff of the Group (2008: a
corporate guarantee given by the Company and a staff
of the Group);

(i) pledged bank deposits of HK$5,678,000 (2008:
HK$5,539,000); and

(i)  properties owned by certain staff of the Group (2008:
properties owned by certain staff of the Group).

The amount utilised by the Group as at 31 March 2009
under the above banking facilities was HK$22,546,000
(2008: HK$22,131,000).

Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk
are set out in note 29(b).

1. RITER - FEA

R-BBNF=A=+—H  ROTNKE
AT HRIEE

The Group
AEE
2009 2008
—BBAF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
22,546 22,131

R-ZZEZAFEZA=+—0 A£EE
BRERIBITERELE 238,278,00078 (=
T )\ 4 22,711,000 7 ) LA F F
KE535%F5.44% (BT N\F  FH=X
6.57%)&T B + WA N5 SIEEER :

() ARA]AEE-RZLBERE—
FETIRFEZABAER(CEZEN
FrARRRAEE -BETRH
ZRAEER)

iy BE|MHRITFH5,678,0008T(=
ZTENF : 5539,00087L) : &

iy AEBETEIHRBEZYWECCE
ENF AEEBETEIREZY
%)

R-BTAF=ZA=+—0  ANEERE

LERITREPTEN A 2 &85/ 22,546,000

BEIL(ZZZ\F 1 22,131,00087T) °

AEBRBESEBRERE 2#E—SFFEHE
R EE29(0) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& Rk R KfzT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% S 584N + # LA TT5IR )

22. Trade and other payables 22, ERHESRERHMMENSKIE
The Group The Company
KEM AR
2009 2008 2009 2008
“ZENE “EENE “EENE —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Trade creditors B E SR 14,508 16,004 = -
Other payables and Hin R 7ER
accrued charges [ ER 9,203 21,699 923 810
23,711 36,703 923 810
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be FEENESHIEREEANTIBTES G
settled within one year or are repayable on demand. N—FERNFEXBILZEREE - T AE
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with NESRELRHEMENTEAEENE SR
the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date: oo HRNEER ZERBESTOT -
The Group
A4
2009 2008
—EThE ZET)N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Due within 1 month or on demand 1 E A R 2 sk EI EP 14,416 14,347
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 71 E 3R A K3 Ef 84 644
Due after 3 months but within 12 months R 3 & 12 & B A F| & 8 13
14,508 15,004
23. Amount due to a director 23. Bt —REENE
The amount due to a director of the Company, Dr. Cheung FERAANRES R EME - 2 FB AEK
Yuk Shan, Shirley, is unsecured, interest free and repayable 2B NARENRERE -
on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% B B34 « ¥ TFIR)

24. Obligations under finance leases

At 31 March 2009, the Group had obligations under finance

leases repayable as follows:

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within
2 years

Less: total future interest

expenses

Present value of lease
obligations

1FR
122FR

B R BRI

HER

MEREZRE

24, BWEHEAE
R-ZEENF=ZA=+—H KEB &
BEHEREEBENT

The Group
AEE
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
Present Present

value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BIKEST BRIKFEAT SIEFER BIKER
HezRE HedsE HevhE e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FHET
1,141 1,208 302 320
791 805 — —
1,932 2,013 302 320
(81) (18)
1,932 302
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (b ZAEFERRSN + HLABTTIIR)

24. Obligations under finance leases (Continued) 24. MEHEARE @)

At 31 March 2009, a corporate guarantee was given by a E/\:Egﬂi A=+—8 —HE#
related company in respect of the finance lease facilities of HEARIBEEMERE 4 2,300,000 % 7T
approximately HK$2,300,000 (2008: HK$Nil) granted to a (ZZ2ZENF  TEFT)R—HEHB AR
subsidiary (see note 31(a)). HABER(RKHFE31(@@) °
At 31 March 2008, the Company had given a corporate RZZEZENGF=A=+—0  A27E%
guarantee to a finance company in respect of the finance REETERE 41,748,000 A — A HF
lease facilities of approximately HK$1,748,000. The BRARHAFER - AEEREBE=ZT
obligations under such finance leases were fully repaid ENFZA=+—BHIFEZHEEZRD
during the year ended 31 March 2009 by the Group and, BHEEAYE - At - KRB ERREER
accordingly, the Company was released from its guarantee (RHIFE31(b)) °
(see note 31(b)).
25. Income tax in the balance sheet 25. EEBBERAZFEH
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet (a) REGEEBBERANCEZHBIE
represents: £
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EZhE —EEN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
PRC Enterprise Income Tax P EMSH
— Provision for the year (note 6(a)) — FREME (N iF6(a) 1,329 1,684
— Provisional tax paid — BATEHF (1,006) (1,487)
323 197
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 sERR5h « ¥ A TL3IR)

25. Income tax in the balance sheet (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax — the Group

(i)

Deferred tax liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and
the movements during the year are as follows:

25. BEEEBRAZHAES @)

(b)

Depreciation
in excess of

the related
depreciation

EEBE — A5H

(i)

EEREENRAAE

REFREERABRERZEL
HIEEERDERFRNZES)

mT -

Other
temporary

allowances differences
Deferred tax arising from: EBLHEEHE Hith Total
DT EEMEELE ZEERE ! wERE HrrEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FET FET
At 1 April 2007 RZETLF
mA—A — — —
Charged to profit or loss EEEESEIES (53) 167 114
Effect of changes in tax MR &
rates 13 162 175
Under-provision in prior BEFERENR
years — 2,752 2,752
At 31 March 2008 RZETENF
=A=+—H (40) 3,081 3,041
At 1 April 2008 RZEZENF
mA—H (40) 3,081 3,041
Charged to profit or loss SRERR]5S 27 (870) (843)
Exchange adjustments P 5% — 74 74
At 31 March 2009 RZZBZENF
=HR=+—H (13) 2,785 2,772
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

25. Income tax in the balance sheet (Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax — the Group (Continued)

(if)

(i)

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

At 31 March 2009, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of HK$21,547,000 (2008: HK$16,428,000)
and deductible temporary differences of
HK$957,000 (2008: HK$701,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Of the total tax
losses, HK$5,621,000 (2008: HK$2,557,000) will
be expired within 5 years and the remaining tax
losses of HK$15,926,000 (2008: HK$13,871,000)
have no expiry date under the current tax
legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

At 31 March 2009, the Group has not recognised
insignificant deferred tax liabilities relating to
temporary differences of HK$872,000 (2008:
HK$229,000).

Deferred tax — The Company

No deferred tax assets or liabilities have been
made in the financial statements as the Company
does not have any significant temporary
differences. The Company has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of HK$2,619,000 (2008: HK$2,061,000)
as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the tax jurisdiction. The tax losses do
not expire under current tax legislation.
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25. BEEBRAZHES @)

(b)

EERE — AEE(E)

(i

(i)

AEREEHREE

RZZEZTANF=ZRA=+—
H - BREAEBED S RE®E
EREETKRAEERKE
RRAF B AEE - BN
SEYESRZFTHEEE
21,547,000/ ;m(=Z & F N
#F 116,428,000/ 7T ) & AT #
i B B 2= 58957,000%8 JT(=
T )\F 701,000 7T ) ##E
RELEHBEE - BIIEBER
B 5,621,000 jo(=Z &
= )\ F 2,557,000 70 ) #%
REEAfER - ek T IEE
815,926,000 T(ZEZN
% 113,871,000/ 70 ) IR IE IR
IEAELEEmA o

AERELEHBEEE -

RZZEZAF=ZRAR=+—
H AEBYESRERERE
872,000 T(ZZEZ\F
229,000 L) ERESRE T K
ZIBELERIBEE -

EEHIR — AR

=N g s R R BN
EE BRI EIRE R IE
HREERIEEESBE - R
ERBRDEER T KRR AR
RERBBFNTBAEE -
MR A B R AR IE &
2,619,000 T(Z T ZE N
1 2,061,00078 7T ) FERIE LT
MIBEE - MEBBRERT
FETEER -



26. Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
(the “Ordinance”). The scheme is administered by an
independent trustee.

Under the MPF Scheme, certain subsidiaries of the Group
and the eligible employees make monthly mandatory
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory contributions
by each party are subject to a maximum of HK$1,000 per
month. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately upon
the completion of service in the relevant service period.

At 31 March 2009, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and
the employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid
provident fund. At 31 March 2009, the Group’s contributions
to the provident funds and the accrued interest thereon
exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC employees are required to make contributions
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.
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27. Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 4 November 20083. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme include full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers (including executive,
non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and
any supplies, consultants, agents or advisers who, in the
sole opinion of the Board, have contributed to the Company
and/or such subsidiaries.

Share options are granted to the eligible participants at nil
consideration. The options are exercisable from the date
of grant within a period ranging from 5.0 to 9.2 years of
respective option plans. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option plans of the Company at any time shall not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant in excess of 1% of the number of
shares in issue as at the date of grant, are subject to the
Company issuing a circular and the approval from the
Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.
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27. BaXfizROXRZ #)

27. Equity-settled share-based transactions

(Continued)

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme (which
shall be payable upon exercise of the option) shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of (i)
the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board as its absolute discretion, save that
no option may be exercised more than five years after it has
been granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
during the year are as follows, whereby all options are

BIE BB R SR 2 R R -
HRBRO 2 TERE(AETEBRER
fy’?&ﬁ)ﬁEEﬁ% ZREORE - WEZERD

BEROBOABREBB(KELSERA)
EH@?X?)?E#E?EF)’T#&ZIETWWT C (i) B
MRBEEEL AR A EEE B TR
HRRAHR 2 FHWTE : &) mHmE
B(MUEaERE) -

BREZITEHRAEETSERRTE @ I
BRERLBEAFRIGITE - BB
ErElE A e BB T FRTIERN
FRASHE

(@) RFERFEZRHGERRE G
B TEBBREANEYR

settled by physical delivery of shares: Nlhz A EE
Contractual
Number of life of options
instruments BREZ
IAgH EREH
Options granted to directors: BTES 2 HERKE
— on 10 September 2004 — R-ZEETNMFHAATH 10,000,000 9.2 years
Options granted to employees: KTREB B
— on 2 September 2004 — RZZEZEMFELAZH 1,000,000 5.0 years
— on 20 May 2005 — RZZEZRFRAA-T+H 800,000 5.0 years
— on 6 September 2005 — RZZEZTRFNLAKRH 12,890,000 5.0 years
14,690,000
Total share options R B 24,690,000
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27. Equity-settled share-based transactions 27. BB XA Z2RBRX 5 &)
(Continued)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b) FEREEE MMEFHITEEZN
share options are as follows: K
2009 2008
—EBEhF ZETNF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
4 IR I g tE
THEE #A TE(E # A
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at the REFHARITE
beginning of the year 0.499 24,690,000 0.496 30,090,000
Forfeited during the year A REI - - 0.486  (5,400,000)

Outstanding at the end  RELKEARITHE
of the year 0.499 24,690,000 0.499 24,690,000

Exercisable at the end RERA]IT{E

of the year 0.499 24,690,000 0.499 24,690,000
The options outstanding at 31 March 2009 had an RIETZAFZA=Z+—BHEHRTERE
exercise price in the range of HK$0.487 to HK$0.534 MEAEZ1TEEN F0.487 B L £ 0.534 78
(2008: HK$0.487 to HK$0.534) and a weighted T(ZZF TN\ F 04878 L £0.534 %
average remaining contractual life of 2.66 years (2008: Jo)  MEFHRGENFHAE2.66F
3.66 years). (ZZEZNF : 3.66%F) °
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27. Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on a Black Scholes model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this model.

FERASN - HIAETTEIR)

27. BaXfizROXRZ #)

(c) BREQATERRER

Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the

Black Scholes model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value at measurement
date
Share price

Exercise price

Expected volatility (expressed
as weighted average
volatility used in the
modelling under Black
Scholes model)

Option life (expressed as
weighted average volatility
used in the modelling under
Black Scholes model)

Expected dividends

Risk-free interest rate

B B4

178

TERRR IR (A R ERR
AR 2 IR
R ESIR)

BREFHOAREH
BN Z bt
TR IESIR)

BRI
3 [ g ) 2R

BN 2 BRED W RS2 A
FEDZ2EMBELEREZATE
FHE o IR HIB B 2 (hET R R &
BEAEL A - BREZAOFH
REBEAZBABE - 2HEKEAC
BREURBITEZER -

BREXAFERRER

10 September
2004
—EENF
hA+H

HK$0.142
014278 7T
HK$0.600
0.600/8 7T
HK$0.512
0.512/87T

55.79%

9.2 years

9.24F

3.85%
2.30%

Date of grant

®EBH
20 May 6 September
2005 2005
—ETHF —ETHF
HEA=tH hAH
HK$0.157 HK$0.127
015747 012737
HK$0.510 HK$0.480
0.510/#7T 0.480/87TC
HK$0.534 HK$0.487
0.534% 7T 0.487%7T
58.41% 53.16%
5.0 years 5.0 years
5.0% 5.0
3.73% 3.96%
2.50% 2.50%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

27. Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the
share option grants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (Bk 5 HEASN - $5LAE T

28. Capital and reserves 28. EX R f#E
(a) The Group (@) ZA£H

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ERRALTREREA
Share- - The PRC
based  statutory

payment surplus Ace- Minority
Share Share Merger  Exchange reserve reserve Capital ~ umulated interests Total
capital  premium  reseve  resenve Rt REER reserve losses Total i | equity

Bx  BOER  AKEE  EREE  fURE  BEBE  ERER ZMER &% BRRRE  BufE

Note HKS'000 HKS'000 HK8'000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FEr FEr FAT 7AT FAT FAT 7AT FEr FEr FEr FET
At 1 Aprl 2007 R-FEE
RA-B
~ s previously reported - ﬁﬂﬁi‘wiﬁ 6,609 45,340 3652 1 1,757 444 100 (41,599 9072 16,636 25,708
— pror period eror inrespect o — EBEARK 2R}
equity-setled share-based MZ%ZW
ransections S 280y - - - - 1558 - - (1,558) - - -
- a8 restated - &yl 6,669 45,342 3,69 il 3316 ) 100 (43,157) 9,012 16,636 25,108
Issue of shares kA 26(c)fi) 2930 47146 - - - - - - 50,076 - 50,076
Share ssue expenses RABRR - (1,562) - - - - - - (1,562) - (1,562)
Realisation of merger resene R HEEHE-HH
wpon disposal of asubsivlary  BAFRAKERE
in prior year £5 - - 15 - - - - - 1 - 1
Exchange ifferences on ?EE? HBLFZ
translafion of the financial HERRAEEL
statements of overseas EXZE
subsidiaries - - - 664 - - - 3 69 3,082 3,1
Appropriation to the PRC statutory  SEZHEETRE
surplus resenve i - - - - - 30 - (340) - - -
Capial infecton fromminory ~~ HERETAER
sharefolders - - - - - - - - - 7246 7246
Realisaon of capital reserve ERERER - - - - - - (100) - (100) - (100)
Proftfor the year EREF| - - - - - - - ) 55 1804 1839
31 March 2008 Ro2BNE
Zf=1-H 9,599 90,926 3,637) 675 3316 784 - [43,521) 58,141 2,858 86,999
At 1 April 2008 eIt
RA-A 9,599 90,926 (3,637) 675 3,315 784 - [43.621) 58,141 28,858 86,999
Exchange ifferences on REBMMELEL
translafion of financial HHRRRAELL
statements of overseas EfZE
subsidaries - - - 3618 - - - - 3618 (1,172) 2,446
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - - (30,651) (30,651) (3,808 (34,459)
At 31 March 2009 WIEENE
ZA=t- 9,599 90926 3,637) 4293 3,315 784 - (74,172) 31,108 23,878 54,986
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

28. Capital and reserves (Continued) 28. EXx R fEEE)
(b) The Company (b) AT

Share-based

Share Share payment  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
B& ROEE RONTEE RitER BRAH
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
st &L FET FEr &L FET
At 1 April 2007 RZZ2tE
mA—-R
— as previously reported — A2 %K 6,669 45,342 1,757 (46,659) 7,109
— prior period error in - Bl
respect of equity- ZRIAR S
settled share-based ZATEAR
transactions 28(d)(iv) - - 1,558 (1,558) -
— as restated - &7 6,669 45,342 3,315 (48,217) 7,109
Issue of shares Efetn 28(c)/i) 2,930 47,147 - . 50,077
Share issue expenses R BIRY - (1,562) - - (1,562)
Loss for the year FRER - - - (490) (490)
At 31 March 2008 RZZENE
ZA=1-H 9,599 90,927 3,315 (48,707) 55,134
At 1 April 2008 RIZENE
MA—R 9,599 90,927 3,315 (48,707) 55,134
Loss for the year FRER - - - (170) (170)
At 31 March 2009 RZZENF
ZA=1-H 9,599 90,927 3,315 (48,877) 54,964
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% B B34 « ¥ TFIR)

28. Capital and reserves (Continued)

(c) Share capital

(i) Authorised and issued share capital

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each

Ordinary shares,
issued and fully
paid:

At 1 April
Issue of shares

At 31 March

28. EXKf#EE2)

() B’

() ZEERERITRA

2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
Number Number
of shares of shares
v gE| g gE]
Note ’000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$’000
Hiat Fi FET FHR FET
EE
BrEE
0.01 7T
2 Emi% 1,500,000 1,500 1,500,000 15,000
ZiER
BRTR
MR
R A—H 959,880 9,599 666,900 6,669
BTG, 28(c)(ii) - - 292,980 2,930
R=AH
=+—H 959,880 9,599 959,880 9,599

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time

and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings

of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 % ¥ A Rt A 5]
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(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

28. Capital and reserves (Continued)

(c)

Share capital (Continued)

(ii)

Issue of shares

Pursuant to placing agreements dated 11
April 2007 and 12 July 2007, 133,000,000 and
159,980,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were issued to an independent third party at
HK$0.16 and HK$0.18 each for a consideration of
HK$21,280,000 and HK$28,796,000 respectively.
Of the total consideration of HK$50,076,000,
HK$2,930,000 was credited to share capital and
the balance of HK$47,146,000 was credited to
share premium account.

28. EXK#E 2

(c)

L ENEP)

(ii)

RITRG

BERZZEZTLFMNA+—H

—E2ELF LA+ =HF
372 Bl & 3 & + 133,000,000
B X 159,980,000 % A&
HECOIAE T ZHME AR
5 Bl & X {€21,280,000%&
JT 128,796,000/ T B
o168 & Kk0.18% T
BITTEBILE =T T4
A {850,076,000/% st F

2,930,000 STt AR AS » W
£4 %847,146,0007 7T Al 5t A
&1 B BR -

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (iii) RAZEE H K& R RAKITEBR
options at balance sheet date BZIF

2009 and

2008

Number

Exercise Z—ZETNER

price —EENE

Exercise period 1T 1TfEE 2B
2 September 2004 to —EENFNAZHEZE HK$0.489

1 September 2009 TNFNLA—H 0.4897 7T 1,000,000
10 September 2004 to —EENMFAATHEE HK$0.512

3 November 2013 —=F+—A=H 0.512% 7T 10,000,000
20 May 2005 to —EERFRA-—+RHAEZ HK$0.534

19 May 2010 T-ZTFAATIA 0.53487T 800,000
6 September 2005 to —EERFAAARNBEZE HK$0.487

5 September 2010 —ZEFNLAAA 0.4877%7T 12,890,000

24,690,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (k&

28. Capital and reserves (Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share

options at balance sheet date (Continued)

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company. Further
details of these options are set out in note 27.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium reserve

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman lIslands, the fund in the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued by the Company and the aggregate of
the share capital and share premium of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company through
exchange of shares under a group reorganisation
scheme on 4 November 2003. Further details are
set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 10
November 2003.

FERASN - HIAETTEIR)

28. EXKf#EE2)

(c) BA&(#E)

(iii)

REE AR EHRAITREER
BZIE (E)

BOBRER TRA AR
RE—RARB LB - %F
BRI 2 — SRR KT A
27 °

(d) REEEREN

(i)

(ii)

R 1GEE R

RERSEHS RFDEEE
1) ARBEIRMEERZE
SRR FARRBRER - G
REBEES KRS ABRE
ARBAREBAEEEBIET
B B IR IR A o

B R

EHEREARRETEBK
ZHEEARRRER_-F
T=F+-ANAZEEEA
ST &IFEE SR AD P IE A M 8B
RERA RN G ERE =
B E—SRHBENARFR
—EE=Ft+—AtHAEZ
B EE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf &k R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

28. Capital and reserves (Continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
accounting policies set out in note 2(r).

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents
the fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to the
eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note

2(n)(ii).

The prior period error in respect of equity-settled
shared-based payment transactions amounting
to HK$1,558,000 represented the fair value of
certain share options which had been granted
in 2005 to the eligible participants (including
directors, employees and advisors) under the
Company’s Share Option Scheme. This amount
had been corrected retrospectively, in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
2 “Share-based payment”, by increasing the
Group’s and the Company’s opening balance
of accumulated losses as of 1 March 2007
by HK$1,558,000 and with the corresponding
increase in share-based payment reserve.
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(d)
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(iii)

(iv)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R KMzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (k&

28. Capital and reserves (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v) PRC statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing
the PRC enterprises, a PRC subsidiary of the
Group, which is a sino-foreign joint-venture
enterprise, is required to allocate at least 10%
of their after-tax profit but before dividend
distribution to the general reserve until the
reserve has reached 50% of their registered
capital. The general reserve can only be used,
upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital. There
was no appropriation during the year (2008:
HK$340,000).

The enterprise expansion fund can only be
used to increase capital upon approval by the
relevant authority. Appropriation to enterprise
expansion fund is at the discretion of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiaries. There was no
appropriation during the year (2008: HK$Nil).

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be
used for the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’
employees. Appropriation to the staff welfare
and bonus fund is at the discretion of the board
of directors of the PRC subsidiaries. For Hong
Kong reporting purposes, this appropriation is
charged to expenses and included in creditors
and accrued charges in the consolidated financial
statements.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2009 and 2008, the aggregate amount
of reserves is not available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company as computed in
accordance with the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman lIslands.

FERASN - HIAETTEIR)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& Rk R KizT

(BRAEEHI -

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED)

28. Capital and reserves (Continued)

(f)

Capital management

The Group’s primarily objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes judgements to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes bank
loans, trade payables, other payables and accrued
charges, amount due to a related party, amounts due
to subsidiaries and obligations under finance leases)
less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity and amount due to
a director.

During 20009,
unchanged from 2008, was to maintain the net-debt-

the Group’s strategy, which was

to adjusted capital ratio of no more than 24% (2008:
10%). In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may issue new shares, return capital to shareholders,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% B4 B34k « ¥ TFIR)

28. Capital and reserves (Continued)

(f)

Capital management (Continued)

28. EXKf#EE#)

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 March 2009

and 2008 was as follows:

(H EBEXEEH(E)

R-BEAER

—ZETNF=AR

St HAZEBFRUEHBER

HegmT
The Group The Company
AEE AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EZNGF —TTN\F ZBEAF —TTNF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Current liabilities: RENEE
Bank loans, secured RITER - AEH 22,546 22,131 = -
Trade payables JERTE S 5RIE 14,508 15,004 = -
Other payables and E R SRIE K BT
accrued charges &H 9,203 21,699 923 810
Amount due to a related JEfS—RBEEA TR
party 15 887 — — —
Amounts due to FEASTHT /B A R 5108
subsidiaries — — 3,852 4,164
Obligations under finance B ETHE & E
leases 1,141 302 — —
48,285 59,136 4,775 4,974
Non-current liabilities: ERBEE
Obligations under finance — gh& & &IE
leases 791 — - —
Total debt B4R 49,076 59,136 4,775 4,974
Less: Cash and cash i BRekEe
equivalents ZLEY (29,988) (50,499) (1,203) (51)
Net debt B FEE 19,088 8,643 3,572 4,923
Total equity WS EE 54,986 86,999 54,964 55,134
Amount due to a director  JEff—ZEERE 24,836 — 25,174 —
Adjusted capital PR ~PN 79,822 86,999 80,138 55,134
Net debt-to-adjusted BERFEHLCRAES
capital ratio i 5 g 24% 10% 4% 9%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is RNAFSEF AN B A B EEESTING

Wiz EARRTE

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& Rk R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 s/ 5k « ¥ TTEIR)

29. Financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group
to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables, amounts due from related
parties and cash and cash equivalents. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

In respect of trade receivables, management has a
credit policy in place and the exposure to the credit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30
to 90 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers. As such,
management considers the aggregate risks arising
from the possibility of credit losses are limited and to
be acceptable.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on credit risk
but to a lesser extent. At the balance sheet date, the
Group has a certain concentration of credit risk as 7%
(2008: 12%) and 25% (2008: 33%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively. Management does
not expect any significant losses from trade debtors
that have not been provided for other than impairment
loss on bad and doubtful debt as set out in note 18(b).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED)

29. Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s other receivables
comprise principally advances to business partners,
prepayments for the set up of new slimming projects in
the PRC, advances to staff, trade deposits, prepayment
for the acquisition of a trade mark totalling to
HK$12,089,000 (2008: HK$21,529,000). Should these
parties default in settling the payments and/or providing
services, the Group may suffer financial losses.
Management does not expect any significant losses
from these other debtors that have not been provided
for other than the impairment loss on bad and doubtful
debt as set out in note 18(i). The directors consider

that the carrying amounts are fully recoverable.

In respect of the amounts due from related parties
amounting to HK$21,502,000 as at 31 March 2009
(2008: HK$23,200,000),
in settling the payments, the Group may suffer financial

should these parties default

losses. However, the directors consider that these
amounts are fully recoverable.

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited as
the majority of counterparties are financial institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit rating agencies and stated-controlled financial
institutions with good reputations.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Company in favour of its subsidiary as set out in note
21, the Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group or the Company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 18.

(BRAEEHIN -

YA TTIR)

2. €M T H®)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& Rk R KfzT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 SRSk « ¥ LA TTEIR)

29. Financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s board when
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
and the Company’s financial liabilities which are based
on the contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments, computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance
sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% S B34k « ¥ TFIR)

29. Financial instruments (Continued) 29. €T A
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FEBESER(E)
(i) The Group (i) FEEH
2009 2008
“RENF ZET\E
More
than
Total Within 1 year Total Within
contractual 1 year but less contractual 1 year
undiscounted oron than undiscounted oron
Carrying cash flow demand 2 years Carrying cash flow demand
amount  REEREEM 155, 1ML amount  AERRLR 1R

REE  BAK4E BEX B2 R FAE ~ EANER FEEX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 FEr FEr 7T TET TET TET

Bank loans, secured 1783 A#

W V506 (22546  (22,546) - 2,31 22131) 22131)
Tadepajables  ENEHHE 4508 (14,50) (14,508) - 16,004 (15,004 (15,004
Other payablesand ~ HAbERZUER
accrued charges  fEHTEE 9,203 (9,203) (9,203) - 21,699 (21699) (21,699)
Amountduetoa  EN-£E%
director v 8% (483  (248%) - - - -
Amountdugtoa  EFf—HEEA
related party THE 887 (887) (887) - - - -
Obligations under AT E#dE
finance leases 1,894 (1,932) (1,41 (19) 302 (30 (30)
781 (13912) 13121) (791) 59,136 (59,136) (59,136)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& Rk R KfzT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% S 584N + # LA TT5IR )

29. Financial instruments (Continued) 29. €T A&
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELEKE)
(i) The Company (i) AERa
2009 2008

Z2ENE Z5\E
Total Within Total Within
contractual 1 year contractual 1 year
undiscounted oron undiscounted oron
Carrying cash flow demand Carrying cash flow demand
amount  REREE 15/ amount  REBES 15

FEE RERHLR JEEX REE RESHAE JEEX
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
223 223 172 TR TR TAT

Other payables and accrued HthERFER

charges BHER 93 (929 (929 810 810) 810)

Amount due to a director ERN-4£25% 25,174 (25,174) (25,174) - - -

Amounts due to subsidiaries B ARE 3,852 (3,852) (3,852) 4,164 (4,164) (4,164)

0049 (20049  (20,049) 497 (497 (497

(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIEEAM
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank AEBZRERBRFEEEFIRT
deposits, bank loans and obligations under finance TR RITERRBMERE R -
leases. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the EEBEEDNSAEEAZREN
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value SMERRBEAFERNERR - &
interest rate risk respectively. The Group does not use EEVEFASRITE T EEHF
financial derivatives to hedge against the interest rate R e REEEEREER A
risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by KEEHRT () °

management is set out in (i) below.

(i)  Interest rate profile (i) FIFEHE
The following table details the interest rate profile TERFLUAEEREERAEER
of the Group’s net deposits (being interest- FREAME B ERERT
bearing financial liabilities less bank deposits) at GROZFIEAS -

the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% S B34k « ¥ TFIR)

29. Financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate profile (Continued)

Variable rate deposits:
Bank deposits and cash
at bank

Fixed rate deposit:
Bank deposits

Fixed rate borrowings:
Bank loans, secured
Obligations under finance

leases

Total net deposits

Sensitivity analysis

FERIFR
RITFERRIRTT
RE

ERFR :
RITIFH
EREE :
RITER - HHEA
MEHEAE

TF KRR

20. €M I H#®)

(c) F=ERmER(ZE)
(i) FFEHEE)
The Group
KEE
2009 2008
e —TT\F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BEBRRI=E EBRI=E
% HK$°000 % HK$’000
FET FET
0.36% 20,290 0.59% 41,009
2.25% 5,678 — —
5.42% (22,546) 6.57% (22,131)
4.72% (1,932) 12.50% (302)
1,490 18,576
(i) BBREZHT

At 31 March 2009, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group’s loss after tax and
accumulated losses by approximately HK$15,000
(2008: increase/decrease the Group’s profit after
tax and accumulated losses by approximately
HK$189,000). Other components of equity would
not be affected (2008: HK$NIl) by the changes in

interest rates.

R-ZEENF=A=+—8 -
et FIRER EFH, T 100
EE2 BEMBEEMEH
TR A ER
ZBRBEEEBRRTEELD
15,0008 T (Z BT )\ F : &
m/ ML AEBMzBREEE
F & 2 5t & 18 #7189,000 %
o) RSSO BTER
g B8(ZTT )\ F:
THEIT) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& Rk R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED)

29. Financial instruments (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date
and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point
increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2008.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant currency
risk as most sale, income, purchases and expenses
are denominated in the functional currency of the

operations to which they relate.
Fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
2009 and 2008.
Estimation of fair values
The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments.
(i) Interest-bearing finance lease liabilities

The fair value is estimated as the present value of

future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.

(BRAEEHI -

HLAB TS R)

20. €M T HE®)
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(d)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 SRSk « ¥ LA TTEIR)

29. Financial instruments (Continued) 29. €M IR
(f)  Estimation of fair values (Continued) f ADFEMEE)
(ii)  Financial guarantees (i)  BIBIER

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is HBERELH 2 AFETIRA
determined by reference to fees charged in an MEEBERKE2EREU
arm’s length transaction for similar services, AR 748 A i e I 2 B A
when such information is obtainable, or is EE - REREREREIR
otherwise estimated by reference to interest HERAERER Z 5T M KK
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates (WA EmER - MIEEER 8
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made T;%i”@{’ﬁu“ﬂéﬁfﬁﬁ)ﬁ{%k?@
available with the estimated rates that lenders LB E RAME 2 B F &
would have charged, had the guarantees not M BEEREF -

been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made.

30. Commitments 30. A&iIE
(@) Capital commitment outstanding at 31 March 2009 not (a MNZETZNFZA=Z+—BF®&®
provided for in the financial statements was as follows: i AR P B 75 SR 5k B 2 B AR R I
T~
The Group
TEH
2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Authorised and contracted for ERERETA
— capital injection into a jointly — M AHEEEHEZEIAER
controlled entity 6,000 —
— acquisition of property, plant and — UREE¥IEE - W22 KR 1E
equipment 2,378 190
8,378 190
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& Rk R KizT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (B A #EBRSN - HLABTTIIR)

30. Commitments (Continued) 30. & @)

(b) At 31 March 2009, the Group’s share of capital by RZZEFENRF=A=+—H ' =K
commitments of its jointly controlled entities amounted SEENELRIESE S 2 AE
to HK$166,000 (2008: HK$NIl). 166,000/ T(ZE T )\ F T8

TT) °

(c) At 31 March 2009, the total future minimum lease (0 RZZETARF=A=+—8 17
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are Tﬁiﬁﬁz,ﬁ%%Tﬁ%\ZEéﬁiﬁﬁi%
payable as follows: T

The Group
rEE
2009 2008
—sEAE T\

Properties Properties

and and

display display

locations locations
Y%K Equipment WEY.  Equipment
BRRuE e EN A= B

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET TET T8 TET

Within 1 year 1R 17,804 28 16,146 233

After 1 year but within 5 1FEZEB5ER
years 28,377 - 19,296 104
After 5 years 5F# 17,717 - 14,219 —
63,898 28 49,661 337

The Group is the lessee in respect of certain properties, REBEBARKESHEBRTNAE TWE BRUENR
display locations and items of equipment under HEEBZEABA HE—RYFTEHE =1+
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial FAREEEA RSB ETTHE - e
period of one to ten years, with an option to renew the BEETME=ZFZNN UkEHIEHES - HE
lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments HEBFENAES

are usually increased every two to three years to reflect

market rental. None of the leases includes contingent

rentals.
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(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% B4 B34k « ¥ TFIR)

31. Contingent assets and liabilities

(a)

(b)

Financial guarantee granted

At 31 March 2009, a corporate guarantee was given
by a related company in respect of the finance lease
facilities of approximately HK$2,300,000 (2008:
HK$NIl) granted to a subsidiary (see note 24).

The guarantee was issued by the related company
at nil consideration. The directors consider it unlikely
that a claim will be made against the financier under
this guarantee and therefore no asset is recognised
accordingly.

Financial guarantees issued

As at 31 March 2009, the Company has issued a
corporate guarantee amounting to approximately
RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to HK$17,033,000) (2008:
RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to HK$16,618,000)) to
a bank in respect of banking facilities granted to a
subsidiary as 51% owned by the Group (see note 21).

At 31 March 2008, the Company had given a corporate
guarantee to a finance company in respect of the
finance lease facilities of approximately HK$1,748,000
granted to a subsidiary. The obligations under such
finance leases were fully repaid during the year ended
31 March 2009 by the Group and, accordingly, the
Company was released from its guarantee (see note
24).

The guarantees were issued by the Group and
Company at nil consideration. The transactions
were not at arm’s length, and it is not possible to
measure reliably the fair value of these transactions
in accordance with HKAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, had they been at arm’s
length. Accordingly, the guarantees have not been
accounted for as financial liabilities and measured at
fair value.

31. AIREEREE

(a)

(b)

ERE 2B BER

R_ZEZAF=ZRA=+—8 —
BREAFIRE T HNWBARZ
A& E R E 42,300,000/ (=
TZENF TETIRBEARER
(RHFE24) »

ZERAZEEEARIZERESE
- BEERBR/RBUERABEA
RHEBRRZAGMENK - I &
JEMIEREE °

BB MBER

WZZZAF=ZA=+—HB" ' K
ARIERBR T —HHEAEEESE
51% 2B AR ZRITRAE M —
fE R 17 3% I 49 A R % 15,000,000
(M 17,033,0008 T )(= T
J\F - AR #15,000,000 (8% R
16,618,000 7)) Z R RIFER(R
BisE21) o

RZEZENF=ZA=+—8 " AR
AERET—EWBAT 2REMR
& @& 491,748,000 7% JT A — & BF
BATRHAGER - NEBRE
E-FTTHAFZA=Z+—BHILFE
FHEEZRERERE ALt -
AARERBREER(RMTE24) -

BERAAEERAQNREMEEL -
RPA IR AFRAETT - BAVE
RBTIRRFIRBNETT - I AT RE
RIEEBGERFIORI ST
H: BRANGEIIEFAEZEFR
2 NFE - Bt ERIEEAR
JVER B ENREAFEE -

Annual Report 2009 4= i ¥

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 % ¥ A Rt A 5]




136

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& Rk R KfzT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 SRSk « ¥ LA TTEIR)

31. Contingent assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not
consider it is probable that a claim will be made against
the Group and Company under any of the guarantees.
The maximum liability of the Group and Company
at the balance sheet date under the guarantees
issued is the facilities drawn down by the subsidiaries
of HK$17,033,000 (2008: HK$16,893,000) and
HK$17,033,000 (2008: HK$16,618,000) respectively.

Contingent liability in respect of a legal claim

In March 2009, a customer instigated a legal
proceeding against a subsidiary, as 51% owned by
the Group, for non-performance of a sale contract
by that subsidiary and claimed for the recovery of
full payment of the goods plus interest payment and
the associated legal costs incurred by the customer
totalling RMB1,090,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,238,000).

At date of approval of these financial statements, the
result of the legal proceeding is not yet known. Based
on legal advice from the Group’s counsel, the directors
believe that this claim has no merits and, accordingly,
no provision for such claim have been made in these
financial statements as at 31 March 2009.
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(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% S B34k « ¥ TFIR)

32. Material related party transactions and
balances

(a)

(b)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 7 and the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

Salaries, allowances and other
benefits

Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plan

Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (see note
5(p)).

Financial guarantee granted
As set out in note 31(a), a financial guarantee was

given by a related company, of which Mr. Cheung Ka
Heng, Frankie, is a shareholder.
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(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 SRSk « ¥ LA TTEIR)

32. Material related party transactions and
balances (Continued)

(c) Other related party transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group
entered into the following material related party
transactions:

Loan interest expense paid to a BEN—REFEN
director FEFAZ

Sale of goods to a minority M H R REEE R
shareholder

Note:

(i) Interest expense was paid by the Group in connection with
the loan payable to a director which had been fully repaid
during the year ended 31 March 2008.

(i) Sales to a minority shareholder were made at similar terms
as the Group grants to other customers.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
balance sheet and in notes 15, 16, 19 and 23.

33. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted as a result
of the correction of prior period error as set out in note
28(d)(iv).

Net foreign exchange loss which is incidental to the main
revenue generating activities, was included in as “General
and administrative expenses” in 2008. To conform with the
current year’s presentation, its was reclassified as “Other
net (loss)/income” in the comparative figures. The directors
consider that this revised presentation more appropriately

reflects the nature of this item.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (k&

34. Accounting estimates and judgements

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used
in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and operating
results. Some of the accounting policies require the Group
to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are
inherently uncertain. The critical accounting judgements
in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described
below.

(a)

(b)

Depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charge for the property, plant and
equipment, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of the property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be
required for certain property, plant and equipment,
investments in subsidiaries, interests in jointly
controlled entities and goodwill, recoverable amount
of the asset needs to be determined. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the net selling price and the
value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate selling
price because quoted market prices for these assets
may not be readily available. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to items such as level of
turnover and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items such
as turnover and operating costs.
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(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 SRSk « ¥ LA TTEIR)

34. Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairments (Continued)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectability. A considerable level of judgement
is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the operating results in the year and in
future years.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions
and interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future profit will be
available against which the unused tax credit can be
utilised, management’s judgement is required to assess
the probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Mzt

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (B&

34. Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future
saleability of goods and management experience
and judgement. Based on this review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in this estimation.

Share-based payments

The estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted to employees and other eligible participants
measured by professional valuers and the directors’
estimate based on the Black Scholes model with
modification to reflect the impact of vesting periods and
exercise patterns on the option value. The accuracy
of the above estimations could affect the amount of
share-based payments transactions recognised in the
income statement.

35. Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,

the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new

standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 March 2009 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& Rk R KfzT

(EXPRESSED IN HONG KONG DOLLARS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED) (% 75 SRSk « ¥ LA TTEIR)

35. Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2009 (continued)

Of these developments, the following relate to matters that
may be relevant to the Group’s operations and financial
statements:

HKAS 1 (Revised)
BEGFERE5R
(F455T)

BisHEk 227

Amendment to HKAS 27
AR GFTERIE27H
(1BETA)

or associate

Presentation of financial statements

Consolidated and separate financial statements: Cost of
an investment in a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity

3. BE-EFEhF=A=1+—H
IFEEEEMERRER2E
AR - TERIRZEARELE
ZEE®)

b RS - AT AR EARE RS NI
B FA

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BTFIRMER &Kk
BIHEER

1 January 2009
—TENF—A—E

1 January 2009

RENRBIMEERE  RNBATR  KFEEGI BN E AR

ZIRERA

HKAS 27 (Revised)
BB g ERE275R
(#&1537])

e RIB BT RER

Amendment to HKFRS 2
BB R ELER
F25% (1BE]A)

cancellations

BAD SI5K - BRI 1k A K R 8

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
BB HRELER
F35%% (KEET)

Business combinations

XBast

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Improving disclosures about financial instruments

BB AR flESRmIA NS HE
E75% (BETA)
HKFRS 8 Operating segments
EBM I RELER KE DR
855

The directors have confirmed that the Group is in the
process of making an assessment of what the impact of
these amendments, new standards and new interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.
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Consolidated and separate financial statements

Share-based payment: Vesting conditions and

—EENF—HA—H
1 July 2009
—EENFEHA—H

1 January 2009

—EENF—HA—H
1 July 2009
—“ERNF+A—H

1 January 2009
—ZETNF—A—H

1 January 2009
—TThF—H—H

EECHR  ARBEEANMG DRERTA
ERLHBREEERERMBEERESE ¥
& 25 AEERLFEMLRSTHEEBRAN
FEQ R REH AR E QR XA R BIR
MBREATEZIHEIKA -



CORPORATE INFORMATION A RE&EE

Board of Directors
Chairman

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley
Executive Directors

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley
Mr. CHEUNG Ka Heng, Frankie

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing
Ms. HUI Yat Lam

Company Secretary

Mr. TSE Ching Leung

Qualified Accountant

Mr. TSE Ching Leung

Compliance Officer

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin
Mr. LI Kuo Hsing
Ms. HUI Yat Lam

Authorized Representatives

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley
Mr. CHEUNG Ka Heng, Frankie

Auditors

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited

12th Floor

China Merchants Tower

Shun Tak Centre

Nos. 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong

Registered Office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681GT

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

E
REMBL
BITES

REMBLE
RKRERE

BYKHTES
REH

SEE L

HF—EZt

DEWE

B E#R S

BB

B IE#R S

ERIE

REMEL
BERREERFMERS
REH

SEE

e

RERE

REMBL
RKEERE

B ED

EBERECHMEBABR AR
a5

TF5E3E 168-200 5%

=D

BERXE

1242

AN EE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681GT

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Annual Report 2009 4= it ¥

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 % ¥ A Rt A 5]

143




CORPORATE INFORMATION A R]&E#t

Head Office and Principal Place of
Business in Hong Kong

12th Floor

Prestige Tower

Nos. 23-25 Nathan Road
Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer
Office in the Cayman Islands

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 513GT

2nd Floor Strathvale House

North Church Street

George Town

Grand Cayman

British West Indies

Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office in Hong Kong

Tricor Standard Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Principal Banker

Nanyang Commercial Bank
Yaumatei Branch

309 Nathan Road

Kowloon

The Bank of East Asia Limited
One Peking Branch

Shop 202 & 203, L/F

One Peking

1 Peking Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Website
Www.sausantong.oom

Stock Code

8200

Annual Report 2009 4£ £ # #7

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 1& & % ¥ A B A W]

BMEERBTREIEER I

BB

B
LI
B 23-25 5%
T2
+=%

MEHRSIBRABEER
BF &

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 513GT

2nd Floor Strathvale House

North Church Street

George Town

Grand Cayman

British West Indies

BEERONBFRERSE

FPEREFRAR
%.5,%

T
%EK;‘E% 285k
SBEP D 2618

FEERRIT

EEISES G

BE
B 309 5%
SB35 1T
RERITHERAR
j—L E/J\ /J\
bR E 1 iﬁ
b RE R
N 202 K2 203 55 5
tRE DT
48k

www.sausantong.com

RAD AR

8200



SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
B agEkaRLH
19/F, PRESTIGE TOWER, 23-25 NATHAN ROAD,

TSIMSHATSUIL, KOWLOON, HONG KONG
BFWINERYD R E23- 255 AP O 124



	COVER
	CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET ("GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE "EXCHANGE")
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE PROFILE
	FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	DIRECTORS’ REPORT
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
	CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
	BALANCE SHEETS
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
	NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	BACK COVER



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


